
 
City of Alvin, Texas  

 
Paul Horn, Mayor 

 

Keith Thompson, Mayor Pro-tem, District C Adam Arendell, District B 
Brad Richards, At Large Pos. 1 Glenn Starkey, District D 
Joel Castro, At Large Pos. 2 Gabe Adame, District E 
Scott Reed, District A  

 
 

ALVIN CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  
THURSDAY MARCH 7, 2019 

 7:00 P.M.  
 (Council Chambers) 

 
Alvin City Hall, 216 West Sealy, Alvin, Texas 77511 

Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting that will require special services please contact the City Secretary’s Office at 281-388-4255 
or droberts@cityofalvin.com 48 hours prior to the meeting time.  City Hall is wheel chair accessible and a sloped curb entry is available at the east 
and west entrances to City Hall.  
 

NOTICE is hereby given of a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, to be 
held on THURSDAY, MARCH 7, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at: City Hall, 216 W. 
Sealy, Alvin, Texas. 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: An item(s) may be 

removed from the Consent Agenda for full discussion by the request of a member of Council.  Item(s) removed will automatically 
become the first item up for discussion under Other Business. 

 
A. Consider approval of the February 12, 2019 City Council workshop minutes. 

 
B. Consider approval of the February 21, 2019 City Council meeting minutes. 

 
C. Consider an amending plat number 2 of Cline Crossing No. 2 (located near the southeast corner 

of Bypass 35 and Highway 6), being a subdivision of a 21.5083 acre tract located in the I. & 
G. N. Railroad Company Survey, Abstract No. 400, City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas, 
and being all of Reserves A, B, C, D, E, F, G and H, Block 1, Cline Crossing No. 2 Amending 
Plat, according to the map or plat thereof recorded in Brazoria County Clerk’s File No. 
2018019058 of the official records of Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

D. Consider a final plat of O’Reilly Alvin Addition (located at 1042 South Gordon), being a replat 
of Alvin / Hi-Lo Addition, an addition to the City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas, situated 
in the H.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey, Section 14, Abstract No. 449, as recorded in Volume 
22, page 295, of the Plat Records of Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

E. Consider a final plat of Lenamon Grove Addition (located at the northeast corner of the 
intersection of Highway 35 and Moore Road), being a 3.36 acre tract of land situated in the 
Hennell Stevens Survey, Abstract No. 595, Brazoria County, Texas, being all that certain 
called 3.64 acre tract of land described in deed to Barbara Jule Lenamon, as recorded in 
Document No. 2014027766, official public records of Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

mailto:droberts@cityofalvin.com


AGENDA - 2 -                                             March 7, 2019 

 
F. Consider a final plat of Huntington Place Section 3 (located in the City of Alvin’s ETJ at the 

northeast corner of FM 521 and Juliff Manvel Road), being a planned unit development 
subdivision of 17.638 acres of land situated in the William Pettus League Survey, Abstract 68, 
Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 

G. Consider a preliminary plat of Southern Colony Section 5 (located in the City of Alvin’s ETJ 
along the east side of FM 521 and north of Juliff-Manvel Road), being a planned unit 
development, subdivision of 2.598 acres of land situated in the William Hall League, Abstract 
31, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 

H. Consider a master preliminary plat of Southern Colony Expansion Phase 1 (located in the City 
of Alvin’s ETJ along the east side of FM 521 and north of Juliff-Manvel Road), being a planned 
unit development, subdivision of 83.1 acres of land out of the W.M. Hall Survey, Abstract 
Group 3, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 

I. Consider a final plat of Fairway Lake (located along Nelson Road to the north of the lake 
property owned by Brazoria County Conservation and Reclamation District #3), being a 
planned unit development, subdivision of 9.759 acres, being a replat of Reserve “A,” final plat 
of Fairway Lake property, File No. 2018038022, O.P.R.B.C. situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. Co. 
survey, Abstract No. 225, City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

5. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. Consider a variance request to the building façade requirement of Chapter 35, Section 35-19 
of the City of Alvin Code of Ordinances, for Southwest Refractory of Texas, located at 2443 
N. Gordon Street. 
 

B. Consider a variance request for the property owner of the vacant lot located at 113 W. Lang 
Street, to reduce the street side building setback requirement of Chapter 21, Section 37(a) of 
the City of Alvin Code of Ordinances, from 25 feet to 10 feet, for the construction of a single-
family residence or duplex. 
 

C. Consider Resolution 19-R-10, granting a blanket easement to CenterPoint Energy Houston 
Electric, LLC., for the installation of 3-Phase electrical power to the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant, and authorize the Mayor to sign the easement agreement upon legal review. 
 

D. Consider Ordinance 19-E, amending Chapter 24, Traffic, of the Code of Ordinances, City of 
Alvin, Texas, for the purpose of designating the prima facie speed limit of 20 miles per hour 
within the Forest Heights Subdivision; authorizing and directing the placement and 
installation of speed control signage; providing for a penalty and publication; and setting forth 
other provisions related thereto. 
 

E. Consider an Interlocal Agreement with the City of League City for use of the Alvin Police 
Department Gun Range, with a one (1) year automatic renewal; and authorize the City 
Manager to sign subject to legal review. 
 

F. Consider Resolution 19-R-11, granting consent to the creation of Brazoria-Fort Bend Counties 
Municipal Utility District No. 3; and other related matters thereto. 
 

6. REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER  
 

A. Review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 
 

7. ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 



AGENDA - 3 -                                             March 7, 2019 

 
Pursuant to 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code reports or an announcement about items of community interest during a 
meeting of the governing body. No action will be taken or discussed. 
 

A. Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Council 
members, and City staff, for which no action will be discussed or taken.   

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

 

I hereby certify that a copy of this notice was posted on the City Hall bulletin board, a place convenient and readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, and to the City’s website: www.alvin-tx.gov, in compliance with Chapter 
551, Texas Government Code on MONDAY, MARCH 4, 2019 at 4:00 P.M.  
         

________________________________ 
 (SEAL)       Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 

 
 
Removal Date: ______________________ 

** All meetings of the City Council are open to the public, except when there is a necessity to meet in Executive Session (closed to the public) under 
the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. The Council reserves the right to convene into executive session on any of the above posted 
agenda items that qualify for an executive session by publicly announcing the applicable section of the Open Meetings Act, including but not limited 
to sections 551.071 (litigation and certain consultation with the attorney), 551.072 (acquisition of interest in real property), 551.073 (contract for gift to 
city), 551.074 (certain personnel deliberations), or 551.087 (qualifying economic development negotiations). 

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/


MINUTES 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 

CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 
January 15, 2019 

 
BE IT REMEMBERED, that on the above date, the Planning Commission met in the First 
Floor Conference Room, at Public Services Facility, 1100 West Highway 6, Alvin, Texas, 
at 6:00 P.M. with the following members present, Martin Vela, Chair; Jake Starkey, Vice 
Chair; Nicole Kelinske, Secretary; Charles Buckelew; Darrell Dailey; Ashley Davis; 
Richard Garivey; Santos Garza; Chris Hartman; and Carrie Parker. Also present was staff 
member Michelle Segovia, City Engineer. Randy Reed was absent. 
 
1. Call To Order.  
Call to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. Petition and Requests from the Public.   
There were no petitions or requests from the public. 
 
3. Oath of Office to newly appointed members. 
City Secretary administered the oath of office to newly and reappointed Commission 
Members Carrie Parker, Richard Garivey and Chris Hartman. 
 
4. Re-organize board. 
Commission Member Jake Starkey was nominated by Santos Garza for the position of 
Chair. Seconded by Ashley Davis, Jake Starkey was elected unanimously. Nicole 
Kelinske arrived at 6:04 during agenda item #4. 
 
Commission Member Ashley Davis was nominated by Chris Hartman for the position of 
Vice Chair. Seconded by Santos Garza, Ashley Davis was elected unanimously. 
 
Commission Member Nicole Kelinske was nominated by Jake Starkey for the position of 
Secretary. Seconded by Santos Garza, Nicole Kelinske was elected unanimously. 
 
5. Approve the Minutes of the Planning Commission meeting of December 18, 2018. 
Commission Member Martin Vela motioned to approve the minutes of the regular 
Planning Commission meeting of December 18, 2018. Seconded by Charles Buckelew, 
the motion carried on a vote of 10 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
6. Consider a final plat of Zuniga Place, being a subdivision of 7.9961 acres, in the 
A. C. H. & B. survey, section 26, A-471, Brazoria County, Texas. City Engineer 
recommends final plat for discussion and approval. Commission Member Vela motioned 
to recommend for approval to City Council. Seconded by Member Buckelew, the motion 
carried on a vote of 10 ayes, 0 nays. 
 
7. Consider a master preliminary plat of Mustang Ridge, being a planned unit 
development of 35.35 acres of land located in H.T. & B.R.R. Co. survey, A-225, City 



of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas. City Engineer recommends final plat for discussion 
and approval. Commission Member Vela motioned to recommend for approval to City 
Council. Seconded by Member Buckelew. The motion carried on a vote of 8 ayes and 2 
nays, cast by Charles Buckelew and Nicole Kelinske. 
 
8. Items of Community Interest. 
Ashley Davis asked for an update for the joint workshop between Planning Commission 
and City Council. Michelle Segovia stated the date has not been set. The joint workshop 
will probably be in February. Nicole Kelinske mentioned large pot holes at the intersection 
of Bypass 35 and Fairway. Michelle Segovia stated it may be in the TXDOT right of way 
but will turn it over to the street department. Charles Buckelew asked about taking school 
zone signs down at the old Mark Twain. Michelle Segovia will speak with the street 
department. Darrell Dailey asked about a timeline for repairing Sealy Street at Johnson 
Street. Michelle Segovia does not know of any timeline under the new projects, but the 
street department may have it under consideration. Darrell Dailey also asked who to 
contact regarding street light maintenance. Michelle Segovia stated Texas New Mexico 
can be contacted regarding street light maintenance. Chris Hartman asked about the 
status of Durant pond. Michelle Segovia stated the contractor is waiting for dry weather 
to finish grading the bottom. Nicole Kelinske stated the new section of Forest Heights has 
speed limit signs listed as 30mph, but the front speed limit signs are posted 20mph 
through the subdivision. Michelle Segovia will look into the traffic ordinance. 
 
9. Staff report and update. 
There were no staff report or update. 
 
10. Items for the next meeting. 
Michelle Segovia stated the Planning Commission will likely see a final plat for Huntington 
Place Section 3 and possibly another section of Martha’s Vineyard. 
 
11. Adjournment. 
Commission Member Dailey motioned to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Member 
Garivey. The motion carried on a vote of 10 ayes. The meeting ended at 6:41 p.m. 



MINUTES 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
216 W. SEALY STREET 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP 
TUESDAY FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 
a Workshop Session at 7:00 p.m. in the first floor Conference Room at City Hall, with the following 
members present: Paul A. Horn, Mayor; Keith Thompson, Mayor Pro-Tem and Councilmembers: 
Gabe Adame, Adam Arendell, Joel Castro, Brad Richards, Scott Reed and Glen Starkey.   
 
Staff members present:  Junru Roland, City Manager; Suzanne Hanneman, City Attorney; Dixie 
Roberts, City Secretary; Larry Buehler, Director of Economic Development; Michelle Segovia, City 
Engineer; Dan Kelinske, Parks Director; Rex Klesel, Fire Chief; Ron Schmitz, EMS/Emergency 
Management Director; Brian Smith, Director of Public Services; and Robert E. Lee, Police Chief.  

 
WORKSHOP BUSINESS 
Visioning and goalsetting for the Capital Improvement Program and budget and possibly include city 
operations and policymaking.  No formal action will be taken by City Council during this workshop. 
Mr. Roland reviewed the following information with all in attendance.   
 
Benefits of Strategic Planning & Goal Setting:  Council’s early involvement, direction for the city 
manager, expedites the council work-sessions on the proposed budget. 
 
Objectives for workshop: review the budget calendar, recap FY19 Project & Major Funds, discuss 
proposed amendment to the budget, present draft of Financial Policy, tax rate analysis, review status 
of current plans, northwest area water and wastewater system analysis, 5-year Capital Improvement 
Program, discuss council goals. 
 
General Fund Projects in FY19:  Police car cameras, police motor cycles, wayfinding signage 
(design), city hall improvements for security, Pearson Park sidewalk, downtown street parking, court 
video equipment, Fire/EMS station design, ugly corner. 
 
Mr. Roland reviewed Major Funds revenue and expenditures analysis through January and discussed 
a proposed midyear budget amendment for monies to construct the disc golf course at Briscoe Park.   
 

Fund Description FY19 
Budget 

FY18 Budget 
Savings 

Budget 
Amendment 

General Projects Disc Golf (construction) $0 ~ $320,000 $315,000 
HOT Fund Disc Golf Course (illumination) $300,000 ~ $197,158 $187,530 

 
Base Bid:           $294,660  General Projects Fund:  $315,000 
North Illumination:  $242,206  HOT Fund:                    $487,530 
South Illumination:  $206,087  Total:       $787,530 
Contingency             $  44,577 
Total:            $787,530 
 
Discussion was had on the funding for the disc golf course.  



MINUTES - 2 -                                     February 12, 2019 

 
Staff has drafted a financial policy that is required for 5-year financial forecasting for the General 
Fund, Debt Service Fund, and Utility Fund.  This establishes criteria for issuing Certificate of 
Obligation bonds and restricts certain debt (P&I) payment structures.  This policy will come before 
City Council for future consideration.   
 
Mr. Roland reviewed the current tax rate information and how it is calculated and discussed how the 
Revenue Cap Bill (SB2) being considered this legislative session could affect the city’s ability to set 
the tax rate. 
 
Mr. Roland reviewed the current plans that are being worked:  Parks Master Plan, Thoroughfare Plan, 
M-1 Ditch Watershed Plan, 2035 Comprehensive Master Plan, and the Utility Master Plan. 
 
Richard Weatherly, P.E. with Freese and Nichols gave a water and wastewater capital improvement 
plan update and gave an update on projects necessary for the proposed northwest developments.  Staff 
emphasized the importance of sticking with the water and wastewater improvement plans in an effort 
to improve infrastructure currently in place.   
 
Mr. Roland asked if any members of City Council had any projects other than what was discussed 
this evening, to possibly include in the upcoming budget process. 
 
Council member Arendell stated that he would like to possibly see funding included to improve the 
aesthetics of the City’s entryways, to possibly include updated entry signs; a flashing alert light to 
help with the walkability on the hike and bike trail by the EMS station; and the possibility of hanging 
a box or platform over the National Oak Park bridge for AISD Education Foundations annual Turtle 
Race. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Horn adjourned the meeting at 9:20 p.m. 
 
 
PASSED and APPROVED the 7th day of March 2019. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Paul A. Horn, Mayor 
 

           
 

ATTEST: ____________________________ 
          Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 



 

 

MINUTES 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
216 W. SEALY STREET 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
AND EXECUTIVE SESSION 

THURSDAY FEBRUARY 21, 2019 
7:00 P.M. 

 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 
Regular and Executive Session at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at City Hall, with the following 
members present: Paul A. Horn, Mayor; Keith Thompson, Mayor Pro-Tem and Councilmembers: 
Gabe Adame, Adam Arendell, Joel Castro, Brad Richards, Scott Reed and Glen Starkey.   
 
Staff members present:  Junru Roland, City Manager; Suzanne Hanneman, City Attorney; Dixie 
Roberts, City Secretary; Michelle Segovia, City Engineer; Dan Kelinske, Parks and Recreation 
Director and Robert E. Lee, Police Chief.  
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Darrell Bailey, Light Christian Center, gave the invocation.   

 
Council member Castro led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and Council member Reed 
led the Pledge to the Texas Flag. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
Proclamation: March 2019 as Centennial DeMolay Month. 
Mayor Horn presented to the members of the DeMolays of the John Wayne Chapter #3667 a 
proclamation declaring the month of March as Centennial DeMolay Month.  

 
Streets and Code Enforcement Departmental Presentation. 
Lisa Sullivan, Code Enforcement Supervisor, gave a departmental update.   

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
Consider approval of the February 7, 2019 City Council meeting minutes. 
 
Acknowledge receipt of the 2018 Annual Racial Profiling Report. 
Article 2.134 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure requires that not later than March 1st of each year, law 
enforcement agencies submit a report containing the previous year’s incident-based data to the Texas Commission on 
Law Enforcement (TCOLE) and to the governing body of that agency’s city or county.  
 
In 2017, the State Legislature passed the Sandra Bland Act (SB1849) which, among other things, repealed Code of 
Criminal Procedure (CCP) section 2.135, which gave a partial exemption for racial profiling data collection to agencies 
with cameras installed in all vehicles routinely used to make traffic stops. With the repeal of this section, a significant 
increase in the amount of data collected from traffic stops has occurred and is reflected in the 2018 Racial Profiling 
Report. The 2018 report includes data on: gender, race or ethnicity, if race was known prior to the stop, reason for the 
stop, street address or approximate location of the stop, whether a search was conducted, and if a search was conducted, 
the reason for the search, if contraband was discovered, description of contraband, result of the stop (verbal warning, 
written warning, citation, arrest and if use of force resulting in bodily injury occurred), and if an arrest occurred whether 
it was a penal law, traffic law, city ordinance or warrant.  



MINUTES - 2 -                                       February 21, 2019 

 

 

A comparison of demographic data collected with the latest demographic data of the City of Alvin (census.gov 2018 
Estimate) and with Alvin Independent School District demographic data. The actual demographic makeup of the City is 
considered to be somewhere between these data sets, as neither consider or measure work, shopping, or traveling 
demographics of the City. The 2018 racial profiling report is representative of our population in general and does not 
indicate racial profiling bias. No complaints of racial profiling were filed with the Alvin Police Department in 2018. 
 
Consider a contract for Election Services with Joyce Hudman, County Clerk, Brazoria County, Texas 
for the May 4, 2019 General Election; and authorize the Mayor to sign said contract subject to legal 
review. 
This is a contract for election services with Brazoria County to conduct the May 4, 2019 General Election for City Council 
District A, District D, and At Large Position 2.  This contract is similar to the contract authorized by City Council every 
year to conduct the City’s election.  The cost for this General Election could range anywhere from $6,000 to $10,000.  
The cost depends on how many other jurisdictions will be holding a May election.  The City Secretary’s Office will handle 
all the required notices, filings, and general paperwork as required by state election law.   
 
Historical Election Cost (General May Election): 
May 2015: $9,471  
May 2016:   $6,151  
May 2017:     $9,200 
May 2018: $4,660 
 
Early voting and Election Day voting will be held at the Alvin Library.  Registered voters may vote at any Early Voting 
location within the County during Early Voting, or on Election Day, may vote at any Voting Center in Brazoria County.  
Staff recommends approval of said contract. 
 
Council member Castro moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Seconded by Council 
member Arendell; motion to approve carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
Consider Ordinance 19-D, amending the City of Alvin 2018-19 Fiscal Year (FY19) Budget by 
increasing (decreasing) certain expenditures and increasing (decreasing) certain revenues to the 
individual budget accounts in all funds set forth in the attached “Exhibit A.” 
At the end of fiscal year 2018 (FY18), the City exceeded fund balance requirements/expectations in the General Operating 
Fund, the Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund, and the Utility Operating Fund.   The savings resulted from personnel vacancies, 
utility savings, lower than expected costs of materials and supplies, etc. Staff has identified capital items that could be 
funded in the current fiscal year (FY19) utilizing prior year budget savings.   
 
•Staff requests that Council amend the FY19 budget to transfer $315,000 FY18 budget savings in the General Operating 
Fund to the General Capital Projects Fund for the construction of the Disc Golf Course.     
 
•Staff requests that Council amend the FY19 budget to use $187,530 of the FY18 budget savings in the Hotel Occupancy 
Tax Fund for the illumination or upgrading of the Disc Golf Course once the construction is complete.   

 
•Staff requests that council authorize the transfer of $300,000 of FY18 budget savings from the Utility Operating Fund to 
the Utility Capital Projects Fund for future capital purchase(s) to support the City’s water and wastewater program.   
 
Council member Starkey moved to approve Ordinance 19-D, amending the City of Alvin 2018-19 
Fiscal Year (FY19) Budget by increasing (decreasing) certain expenditures and increasing 
(decreasing) certain revenues to the individual budget accounts in all funds set forth in the attached 
“Exhibit A.”  Seconded by Council member Richards; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.  
 
Consider an award of bid to Lucas Construction Company, Inc. for the construction of an eighteen-
hole Disc Golf Course with lighting, in an amount not to exceed $787,530.75; and authorize the City 
Manager to sign the contract upon legal review. 
On December 11, 2018, bids were opened for the Disc Golf Course Construction Project.  After review, Kimley-Horn and 
Associates recommends Lucas Construction Company, Inc. as the lowest cost, responsible and responsive bidder.   



MINUTES - 3 -                                       February 21, 2019 

 

 

Contract Amount:   $294,660.00 
Alternate Bid Item# (North 
Illumination) 

$242,206.75 

Alternate Bid Item #2 (South 
Illumination) 
 

$206,087.00 

Contingency (6%) $ 44,577.00 
Total Amount $787,530.75 

 
The Disc Golf Course construction project consists of the following: 3,900 linear feet six-foot-wide concrete walking path, 
nineteen concrete tee pads, seeding, installation of eighteen-disc golf baskets, course signage, electrical service and 
related material for thirty-one light poles providing light for the eighteen-hole course. 
 
The original location and scope of the Disc Golf Course included a 9-hole course along the Hike and Bike Trail (approved 
budget of $35,000).  In FY17, three temporary disc golf course locations were “tested” and the results were presented to 
Council at a workshop meeting on June 24, 2017.  At that time, Council directed staff to consider the 42-acres of currently 
undeveloped (city owned) property, south of Briscoe Park as a potential site for an eighteen-hole disc golf course.  As a 
result, staff worked with professional disc golf player Chris Vandagriff on course layout and obtained a topography survey 
from Gormley Surveying ($4,500) which was completed February 2018.  On March 15, 2018, City Council approved an 
agreement with Kimley-Horn ($21,800) for site grading and drainage design, permit assistance and agency coordination, 
construction documents and construction phase services.  August 2018, the City Manager approved an addendum with 
Kimley-Horn to include an illumination plan ($8,800).  August/September 2018, C&R District #3 removed barbed wire 
fencing and brush along the ditch while Road and Bridge hauled away to the landfill ($4,500).  C&R District #3 will also 
be responsible for the site grading and the installation of the concrete pipe ($9,710.40) used for three ditch crossings.   
 
The proposals are good for 90 days after receipt of bids (as noted on the Advertisement and Invitation for Bid). Staff 
recommends that council award Lucas Construction Company, Inc for the construction of the Disc Golf Course. 
 
Dan Kelinske reviewed in detail the timeline of events for this project.  Discussion was had on the 
course and the benefits it would bring to the community. Mike Shelton with Kimley Horn gave a brief 
overview of the project at hand.  Mr. Chris Vandargriff gave a brief presentation on the benefits that 
this lighted course would bring to the area.  He stated that there isn’t another “lighted” 18-hole course 
in the United States and discussed the potential for this course to host sanctioned tournaments, which 
had the potential to bring tourism to the area.  Lengthy discussion was had. 
 
Council member Adame moved to approve award of bid to Lucas Construction Company, Inc. for the 
construction of an eighteen-hole Disc Golf Course with lighting, in an amount not to exceed 
$787,530.75; and authorize the City Manager to sign the contract upon legal review.  Seconded by 
Council member Richards; motion carried on a vote of 6 Ayes, with Council member Castro voting 
No. 
 
REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER  
Review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 
Mr. Junru Roland reviewed the preliminary list for the March 7, 2019 City Council meeting.   
 
ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Council members, and 
City staff, for which no action will be discussed or taken.   
Mrs. Roberts reviewed items of community interest.   
 
Council member Thompson thanked the city manager and staff for assisting with a citizen’s concern. 
He recommended that staff investigate into security measures at the animal shelter.  
 
Council member Reed thanked city staff for responding to his inquiries.  
 



MINUTES - 4 -                                       February 21, 2019 

 

 

Council member Arendell announced the 20th annual Men Who Cook event on March 2nd at the 
Knights of Columbus.  
 
Council member Castro complimented the city staff. He encouraged everyone to attend the Men who 
Cook event on March 2nd.   
 
Council member Adame requested placing on a future agenda the discussion of pan handling, and the 
permitting of such. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Mayor Horn called for an executive session at 8:13 p.m. in accordance to the following: 
 
City Council will meet in Executive Session pursuant to:  
 
Section 551.074 of the Local Government Code: Deliberation on the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee. 
 
Associate Municipal Court Judge. 
Employment of a Chief Financial Officer. 
 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
Mayor Horn reconvened the meeting into open session at 9:12 p.m. 
 
Consider possible action regarding the appointment of an Associate Municipal Court Judge. 
Council member Starkey moved to reappoint Mohamed Ghuneim as Associate Municipal Court 
Judge.  Seconded by Council member Arendell; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.   
 
Consider approval of the City Manager’s selection of a Chief Financial Officer. 
Councilmember Thompson moved to approve the City Manager’s selection of Michael Higgins as 
the City of Alvin’s Chief Financial Officer, with a starting salary of pay grade of 18.  Seconded by 
Council member Reed; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Horn adjourned the meeting at 9:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
PASSED and APPROVED the 7th day of March 2019. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Paul A. Horn, Mayor 

 
           
 
ATTEST: ____________________________ 
           Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   3/7/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider an amending plat number 2 of Cline Crossing No. 2 (located near the southeast 

corner of Bypass 35 and Highway 6), being a subdivision of a 21.5083 acre tract located 
in the I. & G. N. Railroad Company Survey, Abstract 400, City of Alvin, Brazoria 
County, Texas, and being all of reserves A, B, C, D, E, F, G, and H, Block 1, Cline 
Crossing No. 2 Amending Plat, according to the map or plat thereof recorded in Brazoria 
County Clerk’s File No. 2018019058 of the official records of Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☒Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On January 31, 2019, the Engineering Department received the amending plat no. 2 of Cline 
Crossing No. 2 for review. The property is located near the southeast corner of Bypass 35 and Highway 6 and 
is being platted in order to enlarge Reserve A to accommodate future development. This plat complies with all 
requirements of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance. 
 
The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on February 19, 2019. 
 
Staff recommends approval.   
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed: 2/27/2019 SLH 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Amending Plat No. 2 of Cline Crossing No. 2 
 
Recommendation:   Move to approve the amending plat number 2 of Cline Crossing No. 2 (located near 

the southeast corner of Bypass 35 and Highway 6), being a subdivision of a 21.5083 
acre tract located in the I. & G. N. Railroad Company Survey, Abstract 400, City of 
Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas, and being all of reserves A, B, C, D, E, F, G, and H, 
block 1, Cline Crossing No. 2 Amending Plat, according to the map or plat thereof 
recorded in Brazoria County Clerk’s File No. 2018019058 of the official records of 
Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
 
Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
 





 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   3/7/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 

Agenda Item:   Consider a final plat of O’Reilly Alvin Addition (located at 1042 South Gordon), being a 
replat of Alvin / Hi-Lo Addition, an addition to the City of Alvin, Brazoria County, 
Texas, situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey, Section 14, Abstract No. 449, as 
recorded in Volume 22, page 295, of the Plat Records of Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☒Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On January 31, 2019, the Engineering Department received the final plat of O’Reilly Alvin 
Addition for review. The property is located at 1042 South Gordon and consists of 1 lot and 1 block. The 
property is being replatted from two lots into one lot in order to build an addition to the north side of the 
existing O’Reilly Auto Parts building. This plat complies with all requirements of the City’s Subdivision 
Ordinance. 
 
The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on February 19, 2019.  Staff 
recommends approval.  
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed: 2/27/2019 SLH 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Final Plat of O’Reilly Alvin Addition 
 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve the final plat of O’Reilly Alvin Addition (located at 1042 South 

Gordon), being a replat of Alvin / Hi-Lo Addition, an addition to the City of Alvin, 
Brazoria County, Texas, situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey, Section 14, 
Abstract No. 449, as recorded in Volume 22, page 295, of the Plat Records of 
Brazoria County, Texas. 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

  





 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   3/7/2019 

Department:  Engineering  Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 

Agenda Item:   Consider a final plat of Lenamon Grove Addition (located at the northeast corner of the 
intersection of Highway 35 and Moore Road), being a 3.36 acre tract of land situated in 
the Hennell Stevens Survey, Abstract No. 595, Brazoria County, Texas, being all that 
certain called 3.64 acre tract of land described in deed to Barbara Jule Lenamon, as 
recorded in Document No. 2014027766 official public records of Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☒Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On January 31, 2019, the Engineering Department received the final plat of Lenamon Grove 
Addition for review. The property is located in the City of Alvin Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) at the 
northeast corner of the intersection of Highway 35 and Moore Road. The plat consists of 2 lots and 1 block and 
is being platted for future development. This plat complies with all requirements of the City’s Subdivision 
Ordinance. 
 
The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on February 19, 2019.  Staff 
recommends approval.  
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed: 2/27/2019 SLH 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Final Plat of Lenamon Grove Addition 
 
Recommendation:   Move to approve the final plat of Lenamon Grove Addition (located at the northeast 

corner of the intersection of Highway 35 and Moore Road), being a 3.36 acre tract 
of land situated in the Hennell Stevens Survey, Abstract No. 595, Brazoria County, 
Texas, being all that certain called 3.64 acre tract of land described in deed to 
Barbara Jule Lenamon, as recorded in Document No. 2014027766 official public 
records of Brazoria County, Texas. 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

  





 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   3/7/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider a final plat of Huntington Place Section 3 (located in the City of Alvin’s ETJ at 

the northeast corner of FM 521 and Juliff Manvel Road), being a planned unit 
development subdivision of 17.638 acres of land situated in the William Pettus League 
Survey, Abstract 68, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☒Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On January 31, 2019, the Engineering Department received the final plat of Huntington Place 
Section 3 for review. This section consists of sixty-three (63) single-family residential lots, three (3) blocks, 
and four (4) reserves, and is located northeast of the intersection of FM 521 and Juliff Manvel Road in the City 
of Alvin’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) within Fort Bend County. The Master Preliminary Plat of 
Huntington Place was approved by City Council on June 6, 2017. The property is being subdivided for a new 
single family residential planned unit development subdivision. This plat complies with all requirements of the 
City’s Subdivision Ordinance. 
 
The Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on February 19, 2019.  Staff 
recommends approval.  
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed: 2/27/2019 SLH 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Final Plat of Huntington Place Section 3 
 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve the final plat of Huntington Place Section 3 (located in the City of 

Alvin’s ETJ at the northeast corner of FM 521 and Juliff Manvel Road), being a 
planned unit development subdivision of 17.638 acres of land situated in the 
William Pettus League Survey, Abstract 68, Fort Bend County, Texas. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 





 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   3/7/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle H. Segovia, City Engineer  
 

Agenda Item:   Consider a preliminary plat of Southern Colony Section 5 (located in the City of Alvin’s 
ETJ along the east side of FM 521 and north of Juliff-Manvel Road), being a planned unit 
development subdivision of 2.598 acres of land situated in the William Hall League, 
Abstract 31, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☒Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On January 31, 2019, the Engineering Department received the Preliminary Plat of Southern Colony 
Sections 5 for review. This subdivision is in the City of Alvin’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) located along the 
east side of FM 521 and north of Juliff-Manvel Road. This Preliminary Plat consists of 8 lots, 4 reserves, and 1 
block. This plat complies with all requirements of the Planned Unit Development Section of the City’s Subdivision 
Ordinance. 
 
The Southern Colony Subdivision currently consists of four previously platted sections. 
 
The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on February 19, 2019.  Staff 
recommends approval. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 2/27/2019 SLH 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Preliminary Plat of Southern Colony Section 5 
 

 

Recommendation:   Move to approve the preliminary plat of Southern Colony Section 5 (located in the 
City of Alvin’s ETJ along the east side of FM 521 and north of Juliff-Manvel Road), 
being a planned unit development subdivision of 2.598 acres of land situated in the 
William Hall League, Abstract 31, Fort Bend County, Texas. 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 





 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   3/7/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle H. Segovia, City Engineer  
 

Agenda Item:   Consider a master preliminary plat of Southern Colony Expansion Phase 1 (located in the 
City of Alvin’s ETJ along the east side of FM 521 and north of Juliff-Manvel Road), 
being a planned unit development subdivision of 83.1 acres of land out of the W. M. Hall 
Survey, Abstract Group 3, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☒Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On January 31, 2019, the Engineering Department received the Master Preliminary Plat of Southern 
Colony Expansion Phase 1 for review. This subdivision is in the City of Alvin’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) 
located along the east side of FM 521 and north of Juliff-Manvel Road. This Preliminary Plat consists of 379 lots, 
16 reserves, and 15 blocks. This plat complies with all requirements of the Planned Unit Development Section of 
the City’s Subdivision Ordinance. 
 
The Southern Colony Subdivision currently consists of four previously platted sections. 
 
The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on February 19, 2019.  Staff 
recommends approval. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 2/27/2019 SLH 
 

 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Master Preliminary Plat of Southern Colony Expansion Phase 1 
 

 

Recommendation:   Move to approve the master preliminary plat of Southern Colony Expansion Phase 1 
(located in the City of Alvin’s ETJ along the east side of FM 521 and north of Juliff-
Manvel Road), being a planned unit development subdivision of 83.1 acres of land 
out of the W. M. Hall Survey, Abstract Group 3, Fort Bend County, Texas. 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 







 

  

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   3/7/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider a final plat of Fairway Lake (located along Nelson Road to the north of the lake 

property owned by Brazoria County Conservation and Reclamation District #3), being a 
planned unit development subdivision of 9.759 acres, being a replat of Reserve “A,” final 
plat of Fairway Lake Property, File No. 2018038022, O.P.R.B.C. situated in the H.T. & 
B.R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract 225, City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☒Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On January 31, 2019, the Engineering Department received the final plat of Fairway Lake for 
review. The property is located along the south side of Nelson Road north of the lake property owned by the 
Brazoria County Conservation and Reclamation District #3. This final plat consists of fifty (50) single-family 
lots, four (4) reserves, and two (2) blocks. This plat complies with all requirements of the City’s Subdivision 
Ordinance. 
 
The City Planning Commission voted 8 votes to 1 vote to approve the final plat of Fairway Lake at their 
meeting on February 19, 2019. The Commission Member that voted against approval of the plat did not state a 
reason for their denial of the plat.  Staff recommends approval.   
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed: 2/27/2019 SLH 
 
 

Supporting documents attached: 

• Final Plat of Fairway Lake 
 
Recommendation:   Move to approve the final plat of Fairway Lake (located along Nelson Road to the 

north of the lake property owned by Brazoria County Conservation and Reclamation 
District #3), being a planned unit development subdivision of 9.759 acres, being a 
replat of Reserve “A,” final plat of Fairway Lake Property, File No. 2018038022, 
O.P.R.B.C. situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract 225, City of Alvin, 
Brazoria County, Texas. 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 





 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   3/7/2019 

Department:  Engineering  Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 

Agenda Item:   Consider a variance request to the building façade requirement of Chapter 35, Section 35-
19 of the City of Alvin Code of Ordinances for Southwest Refractory of Texas, located at 
2443 N. Gordon Street. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☒Other 

Summary:   On January 31, 2019, the Engineering Department received a variance request from Rodney 
Rudell of Southwest Refractory of Texas (2443 N. Gordon St.), for a waiver to the façade requirement of 
Section 35-19 of the City Code of Ordinances. Mr. Rudell is proposing to construct building #4 on the property 
and has requested a variance to allow the proposed building to be constructed with an Exterior Insulation and 
Finish System (EISF) façade on the front elevation and 75 feet down the north and south elevations. Mr. 
Rudell was granted a similar variance several years ago when building #3 was constructed. Section 35-19 
requires that the exterior façade on all sides of the building that are visible from the corridor (Gordon Street) to 
be constructed of brick, stone, stucco, EISF, or masonry.  
 
The City Planning Commission voted unanimously to approve this variance request at their meeting on 
February 19, 2019.   
 
Staff recommends approval. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 2/27/2019 SLH 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Variance Request Letter 
• Site Development Plan 

• Exterior Elevation Renderings 
• Chapter 35 Variance Process 
 
Recommendation:   Move to approve a variance to the building façade requirement of Chapter 35, 

Section 35-19 of the City of Alvin Code of Ordinances for Southwest Refractory of 
Texas, located at 2443 N. Gordon Street. 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 















Sec. 35-4. - Variance process 
 

(a) Where unique natural features such as soil and geological characteristics, 
topography, or significant vegetation; historical features such as building design 
and materials and site configuration; or man-made features such as peculiarly-
shaped lots, joint or split ownership patterns or location of existing structures and 
infrastructure on the site inhibit creative site design or pose unnecessary 
constraints to appropriate development as a result of strict compliance with these 
requirements, the building official may approve an alternative plan upon 
determining that such plan meets or exceeds the intent of these standards.  

 
(b) If the building official determines alternative compliance is not applicable, an 

applicant may file a written request for a variance or exception from these 
standards with the building official who will forward the request to the planning 
commission. An applicant for a waiver shall pay a non-refundable fee, in an 
amount provided for in the fee schedule in chapter 28. The planning commission 
shall review all requests for variances and exceptions to these requirements 
regarding appropriate measures for compliance with the intent of these standards. 
The city council shall take action on the recommendation of the planning 
commission.  

(Ord. No. 07-D, § 2, 4-19-07)  

 
 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   3/7/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider a variance request for the property owner of the vacant lot located at 113 W. 

Lang Street, to reduce the street side building setback requirement of Chapter 21, Section 
37(a) of the City of Alvin Code of Ordinances, from 25 feet to 10 feet, for the 
construction of a single-family residence or duplex. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☒Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On February 19, 2019, the Engineering Department received a variance request from the 
property owner of the vacant lot located at 113 W. Lang Street, to reduce the street side building setback along 
Hardie Street from 25 feet to 10 feet for the construction of a single-family home or duplex. The construction 
of a home/duplex with a street side building setback of 10 feet will not cause any traffic safety concerns and 
will blend with the existing structures in the area. If the variance is granted the new structure would be 28 feet 
from the edge of the Hardie Street pavement. 
 
The City Planning Commission voted unanimously to deny this variance request at their meeting on February 
19, 2019. The consensus of the Commission was that approval of the variance would allow for a denser 
development of the property in an already congested area of town near a major thoroughfare (Gordon Street). 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 2/27/2019 SLH 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Variance Request Letter 
• Photos of 113 W. Lang 

• Sec. 21-4 Variance 
 

Recommendation:   Move to approve/deny the variance request for the property owner of the vacant lot 
located at 113 W. Lang Street, to reduce the street side building setback requirement 
of Chapter 21, Section 37(a) of the City of Alvin Code of Ordinances, from 25 feet 
to 10 feet, for the construction of a single-family residence or duplex. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 



From: Roney Jacob                                                                                                                 01/30/2019 

1619 Crescent Oak Dr. 

Missouri City, TX, 77459 

Phone # 832-453-3717 (cell) 

 

Subject: 113 W. Lang St., Alvin, TX, 77511 

 

To, The City of Alvin 

This is a request for a variance to reduce the current street side building setback (from Hardie Street) 

from the required 25 feet to 10 feet for my property at 113 W. Lang Street, Alvin, TX, 77511. My 

intention is to build a new single family or duplex residence at the above-mentioned property.  I am 

attaching a few photos of the building located behind my backyard to satisfy this request.  

Your support in the approval of this variance request would be greatly appreciated. 

 

Sincerely, 

Roney Jacob 

 

 









��������� �	
������������������������

���

������ !"��!�#$%&$'��(�)*+'�,%&--�'�%�./�(-0��&-1��+/'�&2�3$1�$/-4+%&5��$�6$%&$'���7%+3�-4&(��4$*-�%��8'�$**2&�$'-�7+%�$6$%&$'���(4$22�*$1�$�'+'!%�7/'9$:2��7��0�&'�$'�$3+/'-�*%+6&9�9�7+%�&'�-4��7���(�4�9/2��&'��4$*-�%��;�<'�=%$'-&'=�$�6$%&$'��0�-4���+/'�&2�(4$22�*%�(�%&:��-4+(���+'9&-&+'(�&-�9��3(�'���(($%1�+%�9�(&%$:2��-+-4��*/:2&��&'-�%�(-��<'�3$>&'=�-4��?'9&'=(�4�%�&'$:+6��%�./&%�90�-4���+/'�&2�(4$22�-$>��&'-+�$��+/'-�-4�'$-/%��+7�-4��*%+*+(�9�/(��+7�-4��2$'9�&'6+26�90�-4���@&(-&'=�/(��+7�-4��2$'9�&'�-4��6&�&'&-10�-4��'/3:�%�+7*�%(+'(�,4+�,&22�%�(&9��+%�,+%>�&'�-4��*%+*+(�9�(/:9&6&(&+'0�$'9�-4��*%+:$:2���A��-�+7�(/�4�6$%&$'���/*+'-%$B���+'9&-&+'(�$'9�/*+'�*/:2&��4�$2-40�($7�-10��+'6�'&�'���$'9�,�27$%��&'�-4��6&�&'&-1�8'1�6$%&$'���%�./�(-�(4$22�?%(-�:��%�6&�,�9�:1�-4��*2$''&'=��+33&((&+'0�,&-4�$�%��+33�'9$-&+'�-+��&-1�+/'�&2�CD%9��E+��F�!880�G� 0�H!�F!F�I�D%9��E+��FH!JJ0�G�K0� �!� !FHI�D%9��E+�� �!))0�G��0�  ! ! �L



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   3/7/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact: Michelle Segovia, City Engineer 
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Resolution 19-R-10, granting a blanket easement to CenterPoint Energy 

Houston Electric, LLC., for the installation of 3-Phase electrical power to the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant, and authorize the Mayor to sign the easement agreement upon legal 
review. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☒Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   Resolution 19-R-10 grants a blanket easement across the Wastewater Treatment Plant property to 
CenterPoint Energy for the installation of 3-phase electrical power with associated equipment to the plant. This 
work is part of the ongoing Wastewater Treatment Plant Optimization Improvements Phase II Project. Once 
the installation is complete and energized a defined 10’ wide ground easement and 30’ aerial easement along 
the overhead lines will be requested and once granted CenterPoint will release this blanket easement. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 19-R-10. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 2/27/2019 SLH 
 
 

Supporting documents attached: 

• Resolution 19-R-10 
• Exhibit A- Short Form Blanket Easement 3-Phase Overhead and Underground 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Resolution 19-R-10, granting a blanket easement to CenterPoint 

Energy for the installation of 3-Phase electrical power to the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant, and authorize the Mayor to sign the easement agreement upon legal review. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



Res 19-R-10 

 
RESOLUTION 19-R-10 

 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, 
TEXAS, GRANTING A BLANKET EASEMENT TO CENTERPOINT 
ENERGY HOUSTON ELECTRIC, LLC FOR THE INSTALLATION OF 
ELECTRICAL POWER AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 
THE EASEMENT DOCUMENT; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 
THERETO. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the City Council hereby grants that certain Blanket Easement, described and 
attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and made a part hereof for all purposes, to CenterPoint Energy 
Houston Electric, LLC for installation of 3-phase electrical power and associated equipment at 
the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

Section 2. That the City Council hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute and notarize the 
easement evidencing the City’s acceptance thereof, and such easement shall be recorded in the 
Deed Records of Brazoria County, Texas. 

Section 3. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.  
 
Section 4.  Open Meetings Act.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.  
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 7th day of March 2019.  

 
 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS:     ATTEST:    
   
 
 
By: ____________________________  By: ______________________________  
 Paul A. Horn, Mayor  Dixie Roberts, City Secretary  





















 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   3/7/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Ordinance 19-E, amending Chapter 24, Traffic, of the Code of Ordinances, City 

of Alvin, Texas, for the purpose of designating the prima facie speed limit of 20 miles per 
hour within the Forest Heights Subdivision; authorizing and directing the placement and 
installation of speed control signage; providing for a penalty and publication; and setting 
forth other provisions related thereto. 
 

Type of Item: ☒Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   In January 2019, it was brought to the Engineering Department’s attention that the speed limit 
signs at the entrance to the Forest Heights Subdivision state 20 miles per hour (MPH) for the entire 
subdivision, and that the recently constructed Forest Heights Section 7 has speed limit signs showing 30 MPH. 
After reviewing Chapter 24 of the City Code of Ordinances, it was discovered that Barras Street was the only 
street within Forest Heights that was included in the ordinance to be posted at 20 MPH. In order for the 20 
MPH speed limit to be enforceable, the City must approve an ordinance to amend Chapter 24 Traffic to 
incorporate the speed limit. Ordinance 19-E establishes a posted speed limit of 20 MPH within the entire 
Forest Heights Subdivision; authorizes Staff to install the appropriate signage and provides for enforcement of 
the designated speed limit. 

 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 19-E. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 2/27/2019 SLH 
 

 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Ordinance 19-E 
 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Ordinance 19-E, amending Chapter 24, Traffic, of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, for the purpose of designating the prima facie 
speed limit of 20 miles per hour within the Forest Heights Subdivision; authorizing 
and directing the placement and installation of speed control signage; providing for a 
penalty and publication; and setting forth other provisions related thereto. 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



        

ORDINANCE NO.  19-E 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 24 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE INSTALLATION AND 
ERECTION OF SPEED CONTROL SIGNS FOR THE RATE OF SPEED 
IN FOREST HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION; ESTABLISHING A PENALTY; 
AND SETTING FORTH OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED THERETO. 

 
 WHEREAS, the regulation of traffic, motor vehicles and conveyances upon all public 
streets, roadway and right-of-ways constituting a speed zone within the City limits is essential and 
necessary to protect and to preserve the public safety of the City of Alvin, Texas (the “City”); and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 545.356 of the Texas Transportation Code provides that a 
governing body of a city may determine upon the basis of an engineering and traffic 
investigation that any prima facie speed therein set forth is greater or less than is reasonable or 
safe under the conditions found to exist at any intersection or other place or upon any part of a 
street or highway within the City; and 

 WHEREAS, an Engineer for the City conducted an engineering and traffic study and 
recommended the installation and erection of speed control signs; and 
 
  WHEREAS, after review, inquiry, and the opportunity for citizen participation at a public 
meeting, the City Council has found the speed control signs hereinafter set forth and listed in this 
ordinance are reasonable and necessary for the public safety and are supported by sound and 
accepted public safety and traffic engineering criteria;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.   That Section 24-6 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 
 “Sec. 24-6. Same - On specified streets and highways. 

. . . 

(rr) All streets in the Forest Heights Subdivision shall be 20 miles per hour. 

 

 



Ord. 19- E                 Page 2 of 3 

Section 3.  Ratification and Confirmation.  The installation, placement, erection and 
enforcement of the traffic and speed control signs as set forth are hereby confirmed and ratified by 
the City Council. Each speed control location shall require traffic or motor vehicles in the 
designated locations to be in effect at all times and signs will be erected giving notice of the prima 
facie speed limit so declared to be as indicated above unless otherwise changed by another traffic 
control device duly placed, such as a school speed zone. 
 
Section 4.  Traffic Control Speed Signs.  The City Council hereby orders and directs that the 
traffic speed zone signs hereinafter set forth above be placed, installed and erected at the locations 
designated, and that each such sign and device be hereafter maintained and enforced by the City.  
The signs indicate the prima facie speed limit in the direction facing the sign. 
 
Section 5. Violation and Penalties. It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate a 
motor vehicle that enters the speed zone identified above without observing the prima facie 
maximum speed limit which shall remain in effect at all times unless changed by another traffic 
control device duly placed. It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate a motor vehicle 
upon any roadway constituting an urban district being unmarked with a speed control sign at a 
speed of greater than 30 miles per hour or upon any alley being unmarked with a speed control sign 
at a speed of greater than 15 miles per hour.  Further, it shall be unlawful for any person to tamper 
with, alter, remove, destroy, cover or hinder the visibility, of any traffic device control device 
erected by this ordinance in a manner which is inconsistent with its use as a traffic control device.  
Any person who violates this ordinance or part thereof shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon 
conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine as determined in Section 1-5 of the City of Alvin 
Code of Ordinances.   
 
Section 6.   Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances.  That except as amended herein, all other 
provisions of Chapter 24 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas shall remain in full 
force and effect.  To the extent of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this 
ordinance and any other ordinance, the provisions of this ordinance shall control. 
 
Section 7. Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held  
unconstitutional, illegal, invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons 
thereof ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or 
ineffectiveness of such section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining 
portion or portions thereof; but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and 
remain in full force and effect and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be 
severable. 
 
Section 8.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 52 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, and the City of Alvin Charter. 
 
Section 9. Open Meetings Act.   It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 



Ord. 19- E                 Page 3 of 3 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 7th day of March 2019.  

 
 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS:     ATTEST:    
   
 
 
By: ____________________________  By: ______________________________  
 Paul A. Horn, Mayor  Dixie Roberts, City Secretary  



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   3/7/2019 

Department: City Attorney Contact: Suzanne Hanneman, City Attorney 
 
Agenda Item:   Consider an Interlocal Agreement with the City of League City for use of the Alvin Police 

Department Gun Range, with a one (1) year automatic renewal; and authorize the City 
Manager to sign subject to legal review.  
 

 

Type of Item:  ☐Ordinance    ☐Resolution    ☒Contract/Agreement   ☐ Public Hearing    ☐ Discussion & Direction 

Summary:   This Interlocal Agreement will memorialize an agreement between the Alvin Police Department 
and the League City Police Department, for the League City Police Department’s use of the City of Alvin’s gun 
range for law enforcement training purposes.  The League City Police Department has agreed to adhere to the 
City of Alvin’s rules and guidelines for use of the gun range and has agreed to provide its own certified instructors 
for its law enforcement training purposes.    
 
This Interlocal Agreement will continue until June 30, 2020 and contains a one (1) year automatic renewal. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Interlocal Agreement. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue X Expenditure  N/A  Budgeted Item: Yes  No X N/A  

Account Number:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes  No X 

Legal Review Required: N/A  Required X    Date Completed: 2/27/2019 SLH 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Interlocal Agreement for League City Police Department’s Use of the City of Alvin Police Department’s 
Gun Range 
 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve an Interlocal Agreement with the City of League City for use of the 

Alvin Police Department’s gun range, with one (1) year autonomic renewal; and 
authorize the City Manager to sign subject to legal review 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



1 of 5 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

THE CITY OF LEAGUE CITY AND THE CITY OF ALVIN 

§ 

§ 

This Interlocal Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into on the date indicated below 
between the City of League City, Texas (“League City”), a municipal corporation, and the City of 
Alvin, Texas (“Alvin”), a municipal corporation, and known together as the “Parties.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, entitled Interlocal 
Cooperation Contracts, authorizes contracts between political subdivisions for the performance of 
governmental functions and services; and  

WHEREAS, Alvin owns certain property containing a gun range (the “Property”), and the 
League City Police Department desires to use the Property to conduct law enforcement training; 
and  

WHEREAS, the functions and services specified in this Agreement are governmental 
functions or services that either party to the contract is authorized to perform individually;  

NOW THEREFORE, for valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
acknowledged, the parties agree to the following terms:  

TERMS 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are hereby 
incorporated into this Agreement.  
 

2. Term.   
 

2.1. The term of this Agreement shall be from March 7, 2019 to June 30, 2020.   
 
2.2. This Agreement shall automatically renew for an additional one (1) year period from June 

30, 2020, and terminating June 30, 2021, if no changes or objections are raised by either 
party. 

 
2.3. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by either party, with or without cause, 

by giving the other party a minimum of seven (7) days written notice of its intention to 
terminate, such notice to be delivered by hand or U.S. Certified Mail to the other party.   

 



2 of 5 
 

 
3. Use of Property.   

 
3.1. Alvin hereby authorizes the League City Police Department to use the Property for its 

law enforcement training activities, so long as such activities do not interfere with 
Alvin Police Department’s law enforcement training activities.   

 
3.2. The League City Police Department shall adhere to all the rules and guidelines for use 

of the Property as set forth by Alvin. 
 
3.3. League City shall provide training instructors who are certified in the field of law 

enforcement firearm training to conduct the training on either the tactical range or the 
rifle range. 

 
4. Relationship of Parties.  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed by the Parties, 

or by any third party, as creating the relationship of principal and agent, partners, joint 
venturers, or any other similar such relationship.  Alvin shall have no liability to League City 
for injuries to person or damages to property when the cause of such injuries or damages are 
the cause of League City negligent use of the Property. 
 

5. Governmental Immunity.  Each party hereto reserves and does not waive any immunity or 
defense available to it at law or in equity as to any claim or cause of action whatsoever that 
may arise or result from the services provided and/or any circumstance arising under the 
Agreement. Neither Alvin nor League City waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever 
the availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas 
on behalf of itself, its trustees, council members, officers, employees, and agents. Furthermore, 
nothing in this Agreement shall waive or limit the entitlement of any employee or officer of 
either Party to official or qualified immunity. 
 

6. Amendments.  No amendments to this Agreement shall be considered valid by either party 
unless they are in writing and approved by each party’s respective governing body. 
 

7. Miscellaneous Provisions. 
 

7.1. Assignment.  No assignment of this Agreement, in whole or in part for any purpose 
shall be made by either party without the written consent of the other party.  Subject to 
this limitation, this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors and 
assigns of the Parties. 

 



3 of 5 
 

7.2. Notices.  All written notices required by the terms of this agreement shall be in writing 
and mailed via certified mail to the address set forth below:  

 
If to League City: 

City of League City, Texas 
300 West Walker Street 
League City, Texas 77573 
Attn: City Manager 
 
If to Alvin:  

City of Alvin, Texas 
216 West Sealy Street 
Alvin, Texas 77511 
Attn: City Manager 

 
These addresses and addressees may be changed by either party by notice in writing to the 
other party. 

 
7.3. Interpretation of Agreement.  This Agreement or any portion thereof shall not be 

interpreted by a court of law to the detriment of a party based solely upon that party’s 
authorship of the Agreement or any portion thereof. 
 

7.4. Severability.  If for any reason, any one or more paragraphs of this Agreement are held 
legally invalid, such judgement shall not prejudice, affect, impair or invalidate the 
remaining paragraphs of this Agreement as a whole. 

 
7.5. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties hereto and supersedes all prior Agreements, understandings and arrangements, 
oral or written, between the parties thereto with respect to the subject thereof. 

 
7.6. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in 

accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Texas and the venue for any 
cause of action shall be brought in Brazoria County, Texas.  

 
7.7. Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which together 
shall be deemed to one and the same instrument. 

 
7.8. No Waivers.  The waiver by any party hereto of a beach of any term or provision of 

this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach. 



4 of 5 
 

7.9. Current Revenues Available and No Tax Revenue.  Both parties agree that any 
payments that are made under this Agreement for government functions or services 
will be made from current revenues available to the paying party.  Tax revenue may 
not be pledged to the payment of amounts agreed to be paid under this Agreement. 

 
7.10. No Third-Party Beneficiary.  Nothing in this Agreement shall entitle any thirty party to 

any claim, cause of action, remedy or right of any kind, it being the intent of the parties 
that this Agreement shall not be construed as a third-party beneficiary contract.  

 
7.11. Force Majeure.  If by reason of Force Majeure, the parties shall be unable in whole or 

in part to carry out its obligations under this Agreement in accordance with the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement, it shall not be considered a breach by this Agreement.  
The term “Force Majeure” as used in this Agreement shall mean acts of God, strikes, 
lock-outs, or other industrial disturbances, acts of public enemy, orders of any kind of 
the federal or state government, or any civil or military authority, insurrection, riots, 
epidemics, landslides, lighting, earthquakes, fires, hurricanes, storms, floods, 
washouts, droughts, arrests, restraint of government and people, civil disturbances, 
explosions, breakage or accidents to machinery, pipelines or canals, the partial or entire 
failure of the parties, or any other causes not reasonably within the control of the 
parties. 

 
 
 
 
 

(signature blocks on the next page) 

 

 

 

 

 

  



5 of 5 
 

 Executed as of the _____ day of ___________________, 2019, by the City of League City, 
Texas. 

THE CITY OF LEAGUE CITY, TEXAS 

 
 
___________________________________ 
John Baumgartner, Deputy City Manager 
 
Attest:  
 
___________________________________ 
Diana Stapp, City Secretary 
 
Approved as to Form:  
 
___________________________________ 
Nghiem V. Doan, City Attorney 
 
 

 Executed as of the _____ day of ___________________, 2019, by the City of Alvin, Texas. 

 

THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Junru Roland, City Manager 
 
Attest:  
 
___________________________________ 
Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 
 
Approved as to Form:  
 
___________________________________ 
Suzanne Hanneman, City Attorney 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   3/7/2019 

Department:  City Attorney Contact:  Suzanne Hanneman, City Attorney  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Resolution 19-R-11, granting consent to the creation of Brazoria-Fort Bend 

Counties Municipal District Number 3; and other matters related thereto.   
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☒Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On or about February 5, 2019, the landowners of real property located in Brazoria and Fort 
Bend Counties petitioned the City for consent to the creation of Brazoria-Fort Bend Counties Municipal 
Utility District No. 3 to serve approximately 362.666 acres of land in Brazoria and Fort Bend Counties, Texas, 
all of which is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Alvin.  This property is along the 
east side of FM 521 and north of the Southern Colony Subdivision 
 
This property is located within an area which will experience a substantial and sustained residential growth 
within the foreseeable future, is urban in nature, and is not supplied with adequate water, sanitary sewer, 
drainage facilities and services, and roads. The health and welfare of the future inhabitants of the proposed 
MUD require the provision of adequate water, storm and sanitary sewer facilities and services, and roads.  
The property cannot be developed without the creation of the District to finance the water, sanitary sewer, 
drainage facilities and services, and roads; therefore, a public necessity for the creation of a municipal utility 
exists.  The proposed improvements are practicable and feasible, and the terrain of the territory to be 
included in the proposed District is of such a nature that water, storm and sanitary sewer facilities and 
services, and roads can be constructed or provided at a reasonable cost; and said District will be rapidly 
developed primarily for residential purposes with some commercial and retail use. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 19-R-11. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 2/27/2019 SLH 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Res 19-R-11 
• Exhibit A – Property Description 
• Exhibit B – Consent Conditions 
• Petition for Creation of MUD 3 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Resolution 19-R-11, consenting to the creation of Brazoria-Fort 

Bend Counties Municipal Utility District No. 3; and other ma matters related 
thereto.   



 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



BXHIBIT "A''
CoLrnty:

Project:
Job No.
MBS No.

Fort BendiBlazoria
Southern Colony
I 85s67
l8-229

FIELD NOTES FOR 362.666 ACRES

Beirtgatlact containing362.666 acres 01'land, located in the Williarn I'"lall Survey. Ahstract 31, in l;oIt
Berrd County, 1'exas and Abstract 713 in Brazoria County" Texas; Said 362.666 acre tract being a call
363.942 acre tract recorded in the name olJ.H.Caldwell. et a] in Volume 796- Page 565 of the Official
Records of Fort Bend County (O.R.F.B.C.) and being Lots l, 2,3" 4.7,11,12 arrd a poftion of Lot 6.
1'.W. & J.H.B. Hotrse Sirbclivision, a subdivision recorded in Volurne 7, Page 301 of, the Fo* Bend
County Deed Records (F.B.C.D.R.); Said 362.666 acre tract being morc particularly clescribed by nretes
and bounds as fbllows (bearings being based on the'lexas Coordinate System, South Central Zone. NAD
83, as derived tl'orri GPS Obser.rations):

Beginning at a 2-inclt iron pipe tbund at the northeasterly conrer of a call 1.284 acre tracl recorded in the
name of For"t Bend Counl,v- Municipal Utility District Nr-lnber l4l in File Nurnber 2018043550 of the
O.R.F.B.C.. the soutl:easterly corner of a call 48.6 acre tract recorded in the name ol Emrna Ruth Bly in
File Number 20A4149678 of the O.R.F.B.C.. the southerly southwest conter of a call 484.4229 acre tract
recorded in the narne of Hannover Estates, LTD. in File Nurnber 2AA2140473 of the O.R.F.B.C. and
being the southeasterly conler of the David F'itzgerald League, Abstlact 25, the southwesterly corner of
the I.&G.N. R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract 352 and being on the no(herly line of the Willianr l-lall Survey.
Abstract 31, frotl which a 314-inch irotr rod lbLlnd at tlre rrorlheasterly corner of Reser.re "A", Fort Bend
ISD Fenrdell Hcnlv Center for Learning, a subdivision recorded in Plat Nunrber 20110173 olthe Fort
Bend County Plat Records (F.B.C.P.R.), bears South 86 degrees -55 minutes 29 seconds West. a distance
of 175.06 feet;

Thence, rvith the northerly line of said William Hall Sulvey and with the southerly lirre ol albresaicl
484.4229 acre tract and a call 17.478 acrc tract recorded in the name of JNC Development, lnc. in File
Number 2011115756 of the O.R.F.B.C., North 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconds East, at a disrance of
1755.20 pass a fbund 5/8-inch iron rod with "ltliller" cap, at a distarrce of 234A.21feet pass a lound 518-
inch iron rod rvith'oMiller" cap, at a distance of 3151.64 feet pass a for.rncl 5i8-inch iron rod with "Miller"
cap, at a distance of 3753,58 feet pass a found -518-inch iron rod lvith "Miller" cap, at a distarrce of
48Al.72leet pass the Fort BendlBrazoria County line" il all, a distance of 5137.14 feet to a 5i8-inch iron
rod set at the northeast conrer ol afbresaid William Flall Survey. the soutlieasterly con.rer of aforesaid
484.4229 acre tract and being the northeasterly corner of afbresaid Lot l;

Thence, with the easterly line of said William I'lall Survey, South 03 degrees 04 minutes 56 seconcls L,ast.
a distance of I 59 I .83 f-eet to a 2-inch PVC stand pipe found at the southeasterly corner of atblesaid l,ot I

and the northeasterly corner of Lot 9, aforesaid 'l'.W. & .l.FI.B. I-lor-rse Sr-rbdivision:

Tltence, with the southerly line olafbresaid L.ots I and 2, South 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconds West,
at a distance of 175.9A feet pass the aforesaid Fort Bend/Brazaria County line. in all. a clistance of
2n5,6A f-eet to a ?.-inch PVC stand pipe lound at tlre comrnon cornerol'atbresaid l-ots 2. 3. 7 and Lot 8,
aforesaid'f.W. & J.H.u. HoLrse Subdivision:

Thence. with the easterly line o1'said Lot 7, South 03 degrees 04 minutes 56 seconds East, a distance ol
l59l.23 feet to a 2-inch PVC stand pipe found at the common comer of aforesaid Lots 7, 8, I I and i2;

003829.000 I 52\48i6- I 756-4530.v I



Thence, with the common line between Lots 8 and I I, North 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconcls East, a
distance of 1367 .28 f'eet to a 2-inch PVC stand pipe fbund at the common corner of afbresaid Lots 8, 9, I l
and Lot 10, aforesaid T.W. & J.H.B. House Subdivision;

Thetrce, with tlre colnmon line between aforesaid Lots 10 and 11, South 03 degrees 04 minutes 56
seconds East, a distance of 1592.64 feet to a3l4-inch iron pipe founcl at the common comer of aforesaid
Lots 10 and I I and Lots 20 and 21, afbresaid T.W. & J.H.B. House Subdivision;

Thence, with the southerly line of aforesaid Lot 11, South 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconds West, a
distance of 1367.22 f'eet to a 5/8-incli iron rod set at the common coilrer of aforesaid Lots 11, 12.2A artd
Lot 19, aforesaid T.W. & J.LI.B. House Subdivision and being the easterly northeast corner of a call
91.100 acre ttact recorded in the narne of Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc. in File Number
2017121652 of the O.R.F.B.C.;

Thence, with the northerly and easterly lines of said 9l .100 acre tract, the tbllowing four (4) courses;

I ) South 86 degrees 42 rninutes 23 seconds West, at a distance ol 29.30 feet pass a fbund ll2-inclt
iron rod. in all, a distance of I 368.62 feet to a found 5/8-inch iron rod;

2) North 03 degrees 03 minutes 3I seconds West, a distance of 1594.92 feet to a found 518-inch iron
rod;

3) South 36 degrees 57 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 675.85 feet to a S/8-inch iron rod set;

4) South 86 degrees 48 minutes 40 seconds West, a disiance of 3.88 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod found
at the southeasterly corner of a call 162.2524 acre tract recorded in the name of Hannover Estates.
LTD. in File Nurnber 2004018462 of the O.R.F.B.C.;

Thence, with the easterly lines of said 162.2524 acre tract, the following tlrree (3) courses:

I ) North 03 degrees 04 minutes 56 seconds West. a distance of 1593.59 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod
set;

2) South 86 degrees 57 minutes 10 seconds West, a distance of 353.80 feet to a 5/8-inch iron with
cap found;

3) North 03 degrees 05 minutes 12 seconds West, at a distance of 1272.29 feet pass the southeasterly
corner of aforesaid 1.284 acre tract, in all, a distance of 1591.86 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING and containing362.666 acres of land.

THTS DESCRIPTION WAS PREPAR-ED IN CONNECTION WITH A PLAT OF SURVEY
DATED AUGUST 23,2018 AND FILED UNDER JOB NUMBER T85567 AT GBI PARTNERS,
L.P.

GBI PARTNERS, L.P.
TBPLS Firm No. 10130300
Plt:281 .499.4539
August 23,2A18

003829.000 I 52\4836- 1 756-4530.v I



Exhibit B 
 

Conditions to Consent 
 

(a) The District may issue bonds, including refunding bonds, for any 
purposes authorized by law, including but not limited to, purchasing, refinancing, 
designing and constructing, or otherwise acquiring waterworks systems, sanitary sewer 
systems, storm sewer systems, and drainage facilities, recreational facilities, road 
facilities or parts of such systems or facilities, and to make any and all necessary 
purchases, constructions, improvements, extensions, additions, and repairs thereto, and 
to purchase or acquire all necessary land, right-of-way, easements, sites, equipment, 
buildings, plants, structures, and facilities therefor, and to operate and maintain same, 
and to sell water, sanitary sewer, and other services within or without the boundaries of 
the District.  Such bonds must provide that the District reserves the right to redeem said 
bonds on any date subsequent to the 15th anniversary of the date of issuance (or any 
earlier date at the discretion of the District) without premium, and none of such bonds, 
other than refunding bonds, will be sold for less than 95 percent of par; provided that 
the net effective interest rate on bonds so sold, taking into account any discount or 
premium as well as the interest rate borne by such bonds, will not exceed two percent  
above the highest average interest rate reported by the Daily Bond Buyer in its weekly 
“20 Bond Index” during the one-month period next preceding the date of the sale of 
such bonds. The resolution authorizing the issuance of the District’s bonds will contain 
a provision that the pledge of any revenues from the operation of the District’s water 
and sewer and/or drainage system to the payment of the District’s bonds will terminate 
when and if the City annexes the District, takes over the assets of the District, and 
assumes all of the obligations of the District.  
 

(b) Before the commencement of any construction within the District, its 
directors, officers, or developers and landowners will submit to the City, or to its 
designated representative, all plans and specifications for the construction of water, 
sanitary sewer, drainage and road facilities to serve the District and obtain the approval 
of such plans and specifications therefrom.  All water wells, water meters, flushing 
valves, valves, pipes, and appurtenances thereto, installed or used within the District, 
will conform to the specifications of the City.  All water service lines and sewer service 
lines, lift stations, roads and appurtenances thereto, installed or used within the District 
will comply with the City’s standard plans and specifications as amended from time to 
time.  Prior to the construction of such facilities within or by the District, the District or 
its engineer will give written notice by registered or certified mail to the City, stating 
the date that such construction will be commenced.  The construction of the District’s 
water, sanitary sewer, drainage and road facilities will be in accordance with the 
approved plans and specifications and with applicable standards and specifications of 
the City; and during the progress of the construction and installation of such facilities, 
the City may make periodic on-the-ground inspections. 



-2- 
Exhibit B – Consent Conditions 

 
(c) In the event that the District operates a sewage treatment plant, the 

District will agree to employ a sewage plant operator holding an applicable, valid 
certificate of competency issued under the direction of the Texas Department of Health.  
The District will agree to make periodic analyses of its discharge pursuant to the rules 
of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (“TCEQ”) and further, to send 
copies of all such effluent data to the City, as well as to the TCEQ The District will agree 
that representatives of the City may supervise the continued operations of the sewage 
treatment facility by making periodic inspections thereof. 

 
(d) The District, its board of directors, officers, developers, and/or 

landowners will not permit the construction, or commit to any development within, the 
District that will result in a wastewater flow to the serving treatment facility which 
exceeds that facility’s legally permitted average daily flow limitations or the District’s 
allocated capacity therein. 
 

(e) Prior to the sale of any lot or parcel of land, the owner or the developer of 
the land included within the limits of the District will obtain the approval of the 
appropriate officials of the City of a plat which will be duly recorded in the Official 
Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, and otherwise comply with the rules and 
regulations of the City. 
 
 

 
 
 
 



PETITION FOR CONSENT TO CREATION OF
BRAZORIA-FORT BEND COTJNTIES MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 3

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTIES OF BRAZORIA AND FORT BEND

TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COLTNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN:

The undersigned, appearing through their duly authorized agent(s) and representative(s),

acting pursuant to the provisions of Chapters 49 and 54 of the Texas Water Code, and Section

42.A42 of the Texas Local Government Code, respectfully petition this Honorable Council for its

consent to the creation of a municipal utility district. and for cause rvould respectfiilly show the

following:

I.

The name of the District shall be'oBrazoria-Fort Bend Counties Municipal Utility District

N0. 3" ("District").

II.

The District shall be organized under the terms and provisions of Article II[. Section 52

and Article XVI, Section 59 of the Constitr"rtion of Texas, Chapters 49 and 54 of the Texas Water

Code, together with all amendments and additions thereto, and any special act of the Texas

Legislature applicable to the District,

III.

The proposed District will contain an area of approximately 362.666 acres ol land,

situated within Brazoria and Fort Bend Counties, Texas, described by rretes and bounds in

Exhibit ooA", attached hereto and incorporated herein. The District is wholly within the

{i

$

003829.000 I 52\4836- I 756-4530.v I



extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Alvin, Brazoria and Fort Bend Counties. The District is

not within the extrateritorialjurisdiction or corporate limits of any other city.

IV.

The undersigned constitute a majority in value of the holders of title to the lands in the

proposed District, as shown by the county tax rolls and conveyances of record since the date of

preparation of said county tax rolls. No one resides on the Propert,v.

V.

The proposed District shall be organized for the follolving purposes:

(1) provide a water supply for the District for municipal uses, domestic uses and
commercial purposes;

(2) collect, transport, process, dispose of and control all domestic, industrial, or
communal wastes whether in t1uid, solid, or composite state;

(r, gather, conduct, divert and control local stom water or other local harmful
excesses of rvater in the District:

(4) design, acquire, construct, finance, improve, operate, and mairrtain macadamized,
graveled, or paved roads, or improvements in aid of those roads; and

(5) such other construction, installation, maintenance, purchase, and operation of
such additional facilities, systems, plants and enterprises as shall be consistent
with the purposes for which the District is organized.

The aforementioned purposes may be accomplished by any mechanical and chemicat

means and processes incident, necessary or helpful to such purposes, to the extent authorized by

law arrd the creation of the District, to the end that public health and welfare may be conserved

and prompted and the purity and sanitary condition of the State's waters protected. effected and

restored. V{,

The general nature of the work to be done by and within the District at the present time

is: (i) the construction of a water distribution system tbr domestic and commercial purposes; (ii)

003829.000 I 52\4836-l 756-4530.v1



the construction of a sanitary sewer system; (iii) the control, abatement and amendment of the

harmful excess of waters and the reelamation and drainage of overflowecl lands within the

District; (iv) the construction of macadamized, graveled, or paved roads, or improvements in aid

of those roads; and (v) such other construction, installation, maintenance, purchase, and

operation of such additional faciiities, systems, plants and enterprises, all to the extent authorized

by law from time to time.

VII.

There is a necessify for the improvements above described because the District is located

within an area which will experience a substantial and sustained residential growth within the

foreseeable future, is urban in nature and is not supplied with adequate water, sanitary sewer,

drainage facilities and services, and roads. The health and welfare of the future inhabitants of the

District require the provision of adequate water. storm and sanitary sewer facilities and services,

and roads.

The provision of such water, storm and sanitary sewer fbcilities and services, and roads

will conserve and preserve the natural resources of this State by promoting and protecting the

purity and sanitary condition of the State's waters, and will promote and protect the public health

and welfare of the commr.rnity; thereforc, a public necessity exists fbr the organization of said

District.

The property cannot be developed without the creation of the District to finance the

water, sanitary sewer, drainage facilities and services, and roads; therefore a public necessity

exists.

VIII.

The proposed improvements are practicable and feasible, in that the terrain of the

territory to be included in the proposed District is of such a nature that water, storm and sanitary

003829.000 l 52\4836-l 756-4530.v I



sewer facilities and services, and roads can be constructed or provided at a reasonable cost; and

said teritory will be rapidly developed primarily for residential purposes with some commercial

and retail use.

x.

A preliminary investigation has been instituted to determine the cost of the proposed

project, and it is now estimated by those filing this petition, from such information as they have

at this time, that the ultimate cost of the project contemplated will be approximately

$65,000,000.

X.

"fhe undersigned request consent to the creation of the District encompassing the land

described in the attached Exhibit "A".

XI.

WHEREFORE, the undersigned respectfully pray that this Petition be granted in all

respects and that the City Council of the City of Aivin, Texas, adopt a resolution giving its

written consent to the creation of the District.

ITHE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.]

003829.0001 52\4836-1756-4530.v I



RESPECTFULLY sUBMITTED to be effective ro. 5l^ day of Fe bruaru .
241,9

STATE OF TEXAS

COLINTY OF

J

John Caldwell

{^ii" rt

$

$

$

This instrument was acknowledged before me on rn* llh day ot.Febrr,,.arr\ ,zalg,
by John Caldwell.

Notary Public for

(sEAL)
the State of T?faS

...{iti!;;Z BoBBTE GArr MENDozi

=tij{tr ..1: Nolory Fublic, Skrle ril Tcras

ZC. i/\.'.?.: Conrrrr. Frpirer I I -15-?o2?

%gl,l:L Notory lD I 1348e8-l

003829.000 I 52\4836- I 756-453 0.v I



Ann Chaffin

t'

lP*il-^iltttnn

STATE OF TEXAS $

$

$couNTY orjturr,n,r*

This instrument was acknowledged before me on tne 5#r 6ny
by Ann Chaffin

Notary and for
the State of -f€_,,{A,\

(sEAL)

ot FpA,ut, 
^

,2019,f

,$w-'*
;it,lll.{.

B(}BBIE G^II MENDOZA
Nokrry Pulrlir. Skrlc ol Texos
Conrrrr. Fr;lirr:r I I - l5-?t)??
Nolory lD I l J4B?g- l

003829.000 r 52\4836- I ?56-4530.v I



Waller Family Revocable Living Trust

By:
Lois Waller Marchal, as the Waller
Family Revocable Living Trust

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY oF &r4 ti ri t

This instrument was acknowledged before me on th" 
oJth 

duy6p {etoru.e-r4 .ZA$
by Lois Waller Marchal, as Trustee of the Waller Family Revocable Living Trust.

Notary Public in for
the State of

(sEAL)

$

$

$

''.iffi
EOBBIT GA'I MENDOZA
Nolory ltrrblit, $klla ol lcxns

Cornnr, Frpires I 1-15-?02?

Noloty lD I 134898- I

003829.000 l 52\4836-l 756-4530.v I



BLSR Operating, Ltd.,
a Texas limited partnership

By: BLSR Management Corp.
Its: General Parhrer

By:
Name
Title:

Caldwell
President

THE STATE OF TEXAS

hroCOLI-NTY OF rl\t^-
4'J-'vY

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this /' day os iebru<^-,
2019, by John Caldwell, President of BLSR Management Corp., a Texas
partner of BLSR Operating, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, on behalf of said corporation and
said limited partnership.

Notary Public in for
the State of Texas

(sEAL)

$

$

$

.$#
BO88IE $AIL MENDOZA

Nolnrv lrrhlic, Shrle ol Tcxas

Crnt,,, trPi'cs 1 I -l5-?022

Nobry lD I134898-l

003829.000 I 52\4836-l 7564530.v I



I r alrt'r:: I ,rrrl*t'n rxnl*),
' 

.,!/,:rut1t *r l'..4t"{fu 
Lrug,q .{

\l\l'{t,i llh\:

r r,i ',;\ ,,. S{ilZilr'}r,A

I lt:, ttttl;,,rr,.'tll \r.!'. ,,,.t1:r,,.1 !i-,j1qrj rrr-lrrfr, ;::r-'r;ti llt'. I rl,t\ ,'l fchru.trY--l
'ttl"

j,.: i!i t:

''' I t ' t ! ,

. J ft-r' 
11 ili r"t{iit{ itUJl.rl-d"u), 1

'- ',,1..t i" i' r't,ril!; l,t
:li, !,i,rrr , it \ii-':

r1f

t-

'. t \.'

. ie r::^ ::1: t ..itliIi,...:i:
"r:t,s1, .; r, ittai:. 1!
gr a! !r. t:!rtr::rf,t,$,

.,:. !! ;:;._J



BXHIBIT "A''
CoLrnty:

Project:
Job No.
MBS No.

Fort BendiBlazoria
Southern Colony
I 85s67
l8-229

FIELD NOTES FOR 362.666 ACRES

Beirtgatlact containing362.666 acres 01'land, located in the Williarn I'"lall Survey. Ahstract 31, in l;oIt
Berrd County, 1'exas and Abstract 713 in Brazoria County" Texas; Said 362.666 acre tract being a call
363.942 acre tract recorded in the name olJ.H.Caldwell. et a] in Volume 796- Page 565 of the Official
Records of Fort Bend County (O.R.F.B.C.) and being Lots l, 2,3" 4.7,11,12 arrd a poftion of Lot 6.
1'.W. & J.H.B. Hotrse Sirbclivision, a subdivision recorded in Volurne 7, Page 301 of, the Fo* Bend
County Deed Records (F.B.C.D.R.); Said 362.666 acre tract being morc particularly clescribed by nretes
and bounds as fbllows (bearings being based on the'lexas Coordinate System, South Central Zone. NAD
83, as derived tl'orri GPS Obser.rations):

Beginning at a 2-inclt iron pipe tbund at the northeasterly conrer of a call 1.284 acre tracl recorded in the
name of For"t Bend Counl,v- Municipal Utility District Nr-lnber l4l in File Nurnber 2018043550 of the
O.R.F.B.C.. the soutl:easterly corner of a call 48.6 acre tract recorded in the name ol Emrna Ruth Bly in
File Number 20A4149678 of the O.R.F.B.C.. the southerly southwest conter of a call 484.4229 acre tract
recorded in the narne of Hannover Estates, LTD. in File Nurnber 2AA2140473 of the O.R.F.B.C. and
being the southeasterly conler of the David F'itzgerald League, Abstlact 25, the southwesterly corner of
the I.&G.N. R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract 352 and being on the no(herly line of the Willianr l-lall Survey.
Abstract 31, frotl which a 314-inch irotr rod lbLlnd at tlre rrorlheasterly corner of Reser.re "A", Fort Bend
ISD Fenrdell Hcnlv Center for Learning, a subdivision recorded in Plat Nunrber 20110173 olthe Fort
Bend County Plat Records (F.B.C.P.R.), bears South 86 degrees -55 minutes 29 seconds West. a distance
of 175.06 feet;

Thence, rvith the northerly line of said William Hall Sulvey and with the southerly lirre ol albresaicl
484.4229 acre tract and a call 17.478 acrc tract recorded in the name of JNC Development, lnc. in File
Number 2011115756 of the O.R.F.B.C., North 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconds East, at a disrance of
1755.20 pass a fbund 5/8-inch iron rod with "ltliller" cap, at a distarrce of 234A.21feet pass a lound 518-
inch iron rod rvith'oMiller" cap, at a distance of 3151.64 feet pass a for.rncl 5i8-inch iron rod with "Miller"
cap, at a distance of 3753,58 feet pass a found -518-inch iron rod lvith "Miller" cap, at a distarrce of
48Al.72leet pass the Fort BendlBrazoria County line" il all, a distance of 5137.14 feet to a 5i8-inch iron
rod set at the northeast conrer ol afbresaid William Flall Survey. the soutlieasterly con.rer of aforesaid
484.4229 acre tract and being the northeasterly corner of afbresaid Lot l;

Thence, with the easterly line of said William I'lall Survey, South 03 degrees 04 minutes 56 seconcls L,ast.
a distance of I 59 I .83 f-eet to a 2-inch PVC stand pipe found at the southeasterly corner of atblesaid l,ot I

and the northeasterly corner of Lot 9, aforesaid 'l'.W. & .l.FI.B. I-lor-rse Sr-rbdivision:

Tltence, with the southerly line olafbresaid L.ots I and 2, South 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconds West,
at a distance of 175.9A feet pass the aforesaid Fort Bend/Brazaria County line. in all. a clistance of
2n5,6A f-eet to a ?.-inch PVC stand pipe lound at tlre comrnon cornerol'atbresaid l-ots 2. 3. 7 and Lot 8,
aforesaid'f.W. & J.H.u. HoLrse Subdivision:

Thence. with the easterly line o1'said Lot 7, South 03 degrees 04 minutes 56 seconds East, a distance ol
l59l.23 feet to a 2-inch PVC stand pipe found at the common comer of aforesaid Lots 7, 8, I I and i2;

003829.000 I 52\48i6- I 756-4530.v I



Thence, with the common line between Lots 8 and I I, North 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconcls East, a
distance of 1367 .28 f'eet to a 2-inch PVC stand pipe fbund at the common corner of afbresaid Lots 8, 9, I l
and Lot 10, aforesaid T.W. & J.H.B. House Subdivision;

Thetrce, with tlre colnmon line between aforesaid Lots 10 and 11, South 03 degrees 04 minutes 56
seconds East, a distance of 1592.64 feet to a3l4-inch iron pipe founcl at the common comer of aforesaid
Lots 10 and I I and Lots 20 and 21, afbresaid T.W. & J.H.B. House Subdivision;

Thence, with the southerly line of aforesaid Lot 11, South 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconds West, a
distance of 1367.22 f'eet to a 5/8-incli iron rod set at the common coilrer of aforesaid Lots 11, 12.2A artd
Lot 19, aforesaid T.W. & J.LI.B. House Subdivision and being the easterly northeast corner of a call
91.100 acre ttact recorded in the narne of Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc. in File Number
2017121652 of the O.R.F.B.C.;

Thence, with the northerly and easterly lines of said 9l .100 acre tract, the tbllowing four (4) courses;

I ) South 86 degrees 42 rninutes 23 seconds West, at a distance ol 29.30 feet pass a fbund ll2-inclt
iron rod. in all, a distance of I 368.62 feet to a found 5/8-inch iron rod;

2) North 03 degrees 03 minutes 3I seconds West, a distance of 1594.92 feet to a found 518-inch iron
rod;

3) South 36 degrees 57 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 675.85 feet to a S/8-inch iron rod set;

4) South 86 degrees 48 minutes 40 seconds West, a disiance of 3.88 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod found
at the southeasterly corner of a call 162.2524 acre tract recorded in the name of Hannover Estates.
LTD. in File Nurnber 2004018462 of the O.R.F.B.C.;

Thence, with the easterly lines of said 162.2524 acre tract, the following tlrree (3) courses:

I ) North 03 degrees 04 minutes 56 seconds West. a distance of 1593.59 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod
set;

2) South 86 degrees 57 minutes 10 seconds West, a distance of 353.80 feet to a 5/8-inch iron with
cap found;

3) North 03 degrees 05 minutes 12 seconds West, at a distance of 1272.29 feet pass the southeasterly
corner of aforesaid 1.284 acre tract, in all, a distance of 1591.86 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING and containing362.666 acres of land.

THTS DESCRIPTION WAS PREPAR-ED IN CONNECTION WITH A PLAT OF SURVEY
DATED AUGUST 23,2018 AND FILED UNDER JOB NUMBER T85567 AT GBI PARTNERS,
L.P.

GBI PARTNERS, L.P.
TBPLS Firm No. 10130300
Plt:281 .499.4539
August 23,2A18

003829.000 I 52\4836- 1 756-4530.v I



Res. 19-R-11  Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 19-R-11 

 
A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF ALVIN, TEXAS, GIVING CONSENT TO CREATION 

OF BRAZORIA-FORT BEND COUNTIES MUNICIPAL 

UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 3; AND OTHER MATTERS 

RELATED THERETO. 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapters 49 and 54 of the Texas Water Code,  the owners of 
real property located in Brazoria and Fort Bend Counties, Texas (the “Petitioners”), have 
petitioned for consent to the creation of Brazoria-Fort Bend Counties Municipal Utility District 
No. 3 (the “District”) to serve the approximately 362.666 acres of land in Brazoria-Fort Bend 
Counties, Texas, described in the attached Exhibit “A” (“Petitioners’ Land”); and  
 
  WHEREAS, all of the land within the District is located within the extraterritorial 
jurisdiction of the City of Alvin, Texas (the “City”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Texas Local Government Code, Section 42.042, provides that land within 
the extraterritorial jurisdiction of a city may not be included within a municipal utility district 
without the written consent of such city, town, or village; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Petitioner has submitted to the Mayor and City Council of the City, a 
petition for Consent to Creation of Brazoria-Fort Bend Counties Municipal Utility District No. 3; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the general nature of the work to be done in the District is the (i) 
construction, maintenance and operation of a waterworks system for residential and commercial 
purposes; (ii) construction, maintenance and operation of a sanitary sewer collection system and 
sewage disposal plant; (iii) control, abatement and amendment of the harmful excess of waters 
and the reclamation and drainage of overflow lands within the District; (iv) construction, 
maintenance and operation of macadamized, graveled or paved roads or turnpikes, inside or 
outside of the District; and (v) such other construction, installation, maintenance, purchase and 
operation of such additional facilities, systems, plants and enterprises as shall be consonant with 
the purposes for which the District is organized; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City desires to adopt Resolution No. 19-R-11 as set 
forth herein for the purpose of consenting to the creation of the District;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ALVIN, TEXAS:  

 
Section 1. That all of the above recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Resolution as findings of fact by the City Council of Alvin, Texas. 
 
Section 2. The City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, hereby specifically gives its written 
consent, as provided by Texas Local Government Code, Section 42.042, to the creation of 



Res. 19-R-11  Page 2 of 2 

Brazoria-Fort Bend Counties Municipal Utility District No. 3, all of which is within the 
extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Alvin, the boundaries of such land being described by 
metes and bounds described in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and made a part of hereof for all 
purposes. 
 
Section 3. That the City Council of Alvin, Texas, hereby specifically imposes the terms and 
conditions set forth in Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
Section 4. The City Council further hereby notifies the referenced District, its residents and 
property owners of the provisions of applicable law allowing the City to annex any portion of the 
District located within the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction, including without limitation, the 
land authorized to be included in the District hereby. The District shall include a statement in the 
form required under Texas Water Code, Section 49.455, reflecting the possibility of such 
annexation by the City. 
 
Section 5.  Open Meetings Act.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.  

 

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the  ___________ day of March 2019.  

 
 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS:     ATTEST:    
   

 
 
By: ____________________________  By: ______________________________  
 Paul A. Horn, Mayor  Dixie Roberts, City Secretary  
 
 
 



BXHIBIT "A''
CoLrnty:

Project:
Job No.
MBS No.

Fort BendiBlazoria
Southern Colony
I 85s67
l8-229

FIELD NOTES FOR 362.666 ACRES

Beirtgatlact containing362.666 acres 01'land, located in the Williarn I'"lall Survey. Ahstract 31, in l;oIt
Berrd County, 1'exas and Abstract 713 in Brazoria County" Texas; Said 362.666 acre tract being a call
363.942 acre tract recorded in the name olJ.H.Caldwell. et a] in Volume 796- Page 565 of the Official
Records of Fort Bend County (O.R.F.B.C.) and being Lots l, 2,3" 4.7,11,12 arrd a poftion of Lot 6.
1'.W. & J.H.B. Hotrse Sirbclivision, a subdivision recorded in Volurne 7, Page 301 of, the Fo* Bend
County Deed Records (F.B.C.D.R.); Said 362.666 acre tract being morc particularly clescribed by nretes
and bounds as fbllows (bearings being based on the'lexas Coordinate System, South Central Zone. NAD
83, as derived tl'orri GPS Obser.rations):

Beginning at a 2-inclt iron pipe tbund at the northeasterly conrer of a call 1.284 acre tracl recorded in the
name of For"t Bend Counl,v- Municipal Utility District Nr-lnber l4l in File Nurnber 2018043550 of the
O.R.F.B.C.. the soutl:easterly corner of a call 48.6 acre tract recorded in the name ol Emrna Ruth Bly in
File Number 20A4149678 of the O.R.F.B.C.. the southerly southwest conter of a call 484.4229 acre tract
recorded in the narne of Hannover Estates, LTD. in File Nurnber 2AA2140473 of the O.R.F.B.C. and
being the southeasterly conler of the David F'itzgerald League, Abstlact 25, the southwesterly corner of
the I.&G.N. R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract 352 and being on the no(herly line of the Willianr l-lall Survey.
Abstract 31, frotl which a 314-inch irotr rod lbLlnd at tlre rrorlheasterly corner of Reser.re "A", Fort Bend
ISD Fenrdell Hcnlv Center for Learning, a subdivision recorded in Plat Nunrber 20110173 olthe Fort
Bend County Plat Records (F.B.C.P.R.), bears South 86 degrees -55 minutes 29 seconds West. a distance
of 175.06 feet;

Thence, rvith the northerly line of said William Hall Sulvey and with the southerly lirre ol albresaicl
484.4229 acre tract and a call 17.478 acrc tract recorded in the name of JNC Development, lnc. in File
Number 2011115756 of the O.R.F.B.C., North 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconds East, at a disrance of
1755.20 pass a fbund 5/8-inch iron rod with "ltliller" cap, at a distarrce of 234A.21feet pass a lound 518-
inch iron rod rvith'oMiller" cap, at a distance of 3151.64 feet pass a for.rncl 5i8-inch iron rod with "Miller"
cap, at a distance of 3753,58 feet pass a found -518-inch iron rod lvith "Miller" cap, at a distarrce of
48Al.72leet pass the Fort BendlBrazoria County line" il all, a distance of 5137.14 feet to a 5i8-inch iron
rod set at the northeast conrer ol afbresaid William Flall Survey. the soutlieasterly con.rer of aforesaid
484.4229 acre tract and being the northeasterly corner of afbresaid Lot l;

Thence, with the easterly line of said William I'lall Survey, South 03 degrees 04 minutes 56 seconcls L,ast.
a distance of I 59 I .83 f-eet to a 2-inch PVC stand pipe found at the southeasterly corner of atblesaid l,ot I

and the northeasterly corner of Lot 9, aforesaid 'l'.W. & .l.FI.B. I-lor-rse Sr-rbdivision:

Tltence, with the southerly line olafbresaid L.ots I and 2, South 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconds West,
at a distance of 175.9A feet pass the aforesaid Fort Bend/Brazaria County line. in all. a clistance of
2n5,6A f-eet to a ?.-inch PVC stand pipe lound at tlre comrnon cornerol'atbresaid l-ots 2. 3. 7 and Lot 8,
aforesaid'f.W. & J.H.u. HoLrse Subdivision:

Thence. with the easterly line o1'said Lot 7, South 03 degrees 04 minutes 56 seconds East, a distance ol
l59l.23 feet to a 2-inch PVC stand pipe found at the common comer of aforesaid Lots 7, 8, I I and i2;

003829.000 I 52\48i6- I 756-4530.v I



Thence, with the common line between Lots 8 and I I, North 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconcls East, a
distance of 1367 .28 f'eet to a 2-inch PVC stand pipe fbund at the common corner of afbresaid Lots 8, 9, I l
and Lot 10, aforesaid T.W. & J.H.B. House Subdivision;

Thetrce, with tlre colnmon line between aforesaid Lots 10 and 11, South 03 degrees 04 minutes 56
seconds East, a distance of 1592.64 feet to a3l4-inch iron pipe founcl at the common comer of aforesaid
Lots 10 and I I and Lots 20 and 21, afbresaid T.W. & J.H.B. House Subdivision;

Thence, with the southerly line of aforesaid Lot 11, South 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconds West, a
distance of 1367.22 f'eet to a 5/8-incli iron rod set at the common coilrer of aforesaid Lots 11, 12.2A artd
Lot 19, aforesaid T.W. & J.LI.B. House Subdivision and being the easterly northeast corner of a call
91.100 acre ttact recorded in the narne of Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc. in File Number
2017121652 of the O.R.F.B.C.;

Thence, with the northerly and easterly lines of said 9l .100 acre tract, the tbllowing four (4) courses;

I ) South 86 degrees 42 rninutes 23 seconds West, at a distance ol 29.30 feet pass a fbund ll2-inclt
iron rod. in all, a distance of I 368.62 feet to a found 5/8-inch iron rod;

2) North 03 degrees 03 minutes 3I seconds West, a distance of 1594.92 feet to a found 518-inch iron
rod;

3) South 36 degrees 57 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 675.85 feet to a S/8-inch iron rod set;

4) South 86 degrees 48 minutes 40 seconds West, a disiance of 3.88 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod found
at the southeasterly corner of a call 162.2524 acre tract recorded in the name of Hannover Estates.
LTD. in File Nurnber 2004018462 of the O.R.F.B.C.;

Thence, with the easterly lines of said 162.2524 acre tract, the following tlrree (3) courses:

I ) North 03 degrees 04 minutes 56 seconds West. a distance of 1593.59 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod
set;

2) South 86 degrees 57 minutes 10 seconds West, a distance of 353.80 feet to a 5/8-inch iron with
cap found;

3) North 03 degrees 05 minutes 12 seconds West, at a distance of 1272.29 feet pass the southeasterly
corner of aforesaid 1.284 acre tract, in all, a distance of 1591.86 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING and containing362.666 acres of land.

THTS DESCRIPTION WAS PREPAR-ED IN CONNECTION WITH A PLAT OF SURVEY
DATED AUGUST 23,2018 AND FILED UNDER JOB NUMBER T85567 AT GBI PARTNERS,
L.P.

GBI PARTNERS, L.P.
TBPLS Firm No. 10130300
Plt:281 .499.4539
August 23,2A18

003829.000 I 52\4836- 1 756-4530.v I



Exhibit B 
 

Conditions to Consent 
 

(a) The District may issue bonds, including refunding bonds, for any 
purposes authorized by law, including but not limited to, purchasing, refinancing, 
designing and constructing, or otherwise acquiring waterworks systems, sanitary sewer 
systems, storm sewer systems, and drainage facilities, recreational facilities, road 
facilities or parts of such systems or facilities, and to make any and all necessary 
purchases, constructions, improvements, extensions, additions, and repairs thereto, and 
to purchase or acquire all necessary land, right-of-way, easements, sites, equipment, 
buildings, plants, structures, and facilities therefor, and to operate and maintain same, 
and to sell water, sanitary sewer, and other services within or without the boundaries of 
the District.  Such bonds must provide that the District reserves the right to redeem said 
bonds on any date subsequent to the 15th anniversary of the date of issuance (or any 
earlier date at the discretion of the District) without premium, and none of such bonds, 
other than refunding bonds, will be sold for less than 95 percent of par; provided that 
the net effective interest rate on bonds so sold, taking into account any discount or 
premium as well as the interest rate borne by such bonds, will not exceed two percent  
above the highest average interest rate reported by the Daily Bond Buyer in its weekly 
“20 Bond Index” during the one-month period next preceding the date of the sale of 
such bonds. The resolution authorizing the issuance of the District’s bonds will contain 
a provision that the pledge of any revenues from the operation of the District’s water 
and sewer and/or drainage system to the payment of the District’s bonds will terminate 
when and if the City annexes the District, takes over the assets of the District, and 
assumes all of the obligations of the District.  
 

(b) Before the commencement of any construction within the District, its 
directors, officers, or developers and landowners will submit to the City, or to its 
designated representative, all plans and specifications for the construction of water, 
sanitary sewer, drainage and road facilities to serve the District and obtain the approval 
of such plans and specifications therefrom.  All water wells, water meters, flushing 
valves, valves, pipes, and appurtenances thereto, installed or used within the District, 
will conform to the specifications of the City.  All water service lines and sewer service 
lines, lift stations, roads and appurtenances thereto, installed or used within the District 
will comply with the City’s standard plans and specifications as amended from time to 
time.  Prior to the construction of such facilities within or by the District, the District or 
its engineer will give written notice by registered or certified mail to the City, stating 
the date that such construction will be commenced.  The construction of the District’s 
water, sanitary sewer, drainage and road facilities will be in accordance with the 
approved plans and specifications and with applicable standards and specifications of 
the City; and during the progress of the construction and installation of such facilities, 
the City may make periodic on-the-ground inspections. 



-2- 
Exhibit B – Consent Conditions 

 
(c) In the event that the District operates a sewage treatment plant, the 

District will agree to employ a sewage plant operator holding an applicable, valid 
certificate of competency issued under the direction of the Texas Department of Health.  
The District will agree to make periodic analyses of its discharge pursuant to the rules 
of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (“TCEQ”) and further, to send 
copies of all such effluent data to the City, as well as to the TCEQ The District will agree 
that representatives of the City may supervise the continued operations of the sewage 
treatment facility by making periodic inspections thereof. 

 
(d) The District, its board of directors, officers, developers, and/or 

landowners will not permit the construction, or commit to any development within, the 
District that will result in a wastewater flow to the serving treatment facility which 
exceeds that facility’s legally permitted average daily flow limitations or the District’s 
allocated capacity therein. 
 

(e) Prior to the sale of any lot or parcel of land, the owner or the developer of 
the land included within the limits of the District will obtain the approval of the 
appropriate officials of the City of a plat which will be duly recorded in the Official 
Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, and otherwise comply with the rules and 
regulations of the City. 
 
 

 
 
 
 



PETITION FOR CONSENT TO CREATION OF
BRAZORIA-FORT BEND COTJNTIES MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 3

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTIES OF BRAZORIA AND FORT BEND

TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COLTNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN:

The undersigned, appearing through their duly authorized agent(s) and representative(s),

acting pursuant to the provisions of Chapters 49 and 54 of the Texas Water Code, and Section

42.A42 of the Texas Local Government Code, respectfully petition this Honorable Council for its

consent to the creation of a municipal utility district. and for cause rvould respectfiilly show the

following:

I.

The name of the District shall be'oBrazoria-Fort Bend Counties Municipal Utility District

N0. 3" ("District").

II.

The District shall be organized under the terms and provisions of Article II[. Section 52

and Article XVI, Section 59 of the Constitr"rtion of Texas, Chapters 49 and 54 of the Texas Water

Code, together with all amendments and additions thereto, and any special act of the Texas

Legislature applicable to the District,

III.

The proposed District will contain an area of approximately 362.666 acres ol land,

situated within Brazoria and Fort Bend Counties, Texas, described by rretes and bounds in

Exhibit ooA", attached hereto and incorporated herein. The District is wholly within the

{i

$

003829.000 I 52\4836- I 756-4530.v I



extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Alvin, Brazoria and Fort Bend Counties. The District is

not within the extrateritorialjurisdiction or corporate limits of any other city.

IV.

The undersigned constitute a majority in value of the holders of title to the lands in the

proposed District, as shown by the county tax rolls and conveyances of record since the date of

preparation of said county tax rolls. No one resides on the Propert,v.

V.

The proposed District shall be organized for the follolving purposes:

(1) provide a water supply for the District for municipal uses, domestic uses and
commercial purposes;

(2) collect, transport, process, dispose of and control all domestic, industrial, or
communal wastes whether in t1uid, solid, or composite state;

(r, gather, conduct, divert and control local stom water or other local harmful
excesses of rvater in the District:

(4) design, acquire, construct, finance, improve, operate, and mairrtain macadamized,
graveled, or paved roads, or improvements in aid of those roads; and

(5) such other construction, installation, maintenance, purchase, and operation of
such additional facilities, systems, plants and enterprises as shall be consistent
with the purposes for which the District is organized.

The aforementioned purposes may be accomplished by any mechanical and chemicat

means and processes incident, necessary or helpful to such purposes, to the extent authorized by

law arrd the creation of the District, to the end that public health and welfare may be conserved

and prompted and the purity and sanitary condition of the State's waters protected. effected and

restored. V{,

The general nature of the work to be done by and within the District at the present time

is: (i) the construction of a water distribution system tbr domestic and commercial purposes; (ii)

003829.000 I 52\4836-l 756-4530.v1



the construction of a sanitary sewer system; (iii) the control, abatement and amendment of the

harmful excess of waters and the reelamation and drainage of overflowecl lands within the

District; (iv) the construction of macadamized, graveled, or paved roads, or improvements in aid

of those roads; and (v) such other construction, installation, maintenance, purchase, and

operation of such additional faciiities, systems, plants and enterprises, all to the extent authorized

by law from time to time.

VII.

There is a necessify for the improvements above described because the District is located

within an area which will experience a substantial and sustained residential growth within the

foreseeable future, is urban in nature and is not supplied with adequate water, sanitary sewer,

drainage facilities and services, and roads. The health and welfare of the future inhabitants of the

District require the provision of adequate water. storm and sanitary sewer facilities and services,

and roads.

The provision of such water, storm and sanitary sewer fbcilities and services, and roads

will conserve and preserve the natural resources of this State by promoting and protecting the

purity and sanitary condition of the State's waters, and will promote and protect the public health

and welfare of the commr.rnity; thereforc, a public necessity exists fbr the organization of said

District.

The property cannot be developed without the creation of the District to finance the

water, sanitary sewer, drainage facilities and services, and roads; therefore a public necessity

exists.

VIII.

The proposed improvements are practicable and feasible, in that the terrain of the

territory to be included in the proposed District is of such a nature that water, storm and sanitary

003829.000 l 52\4836-l 756-4530.v I



sewer facilities and services, and roads can be constructed or provided at a reasonable cost; and

said teritory will be rapidly developed primarily for residential purposes with some commercial

and retail use.

x.

A preliminary investigation has been instituted to determine the cost of the proposed

project, and it is now estimated by those filing this petition, from such information as they have

at this time, that the ultimate cost of the project contemplated will be approximately

$65,000,000.

X.

"fhe undersigned request consent to the creation of the District encompassing the land

described in the attached Exhibit "A".

XI.

WHEREFORE, the undersigned respectfully pray that this Petition be granted in all

respects and that the City Council of the City of Aivin, Texas, adopt a resolution giving its

written consent to the creation of the District.

ITHE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.]

003829.0001 52\4836-1756-4530.v I



RESPECTFULLY sUBMITTED to be effective ro. 5l^ day of Fe bruaru .
241,9

STATE OF TEXAS

COLINTY OF

J

John Caldwell

{^ii" rt

$

$

$

This instrument was acknowledged before me on rn* llh day ot.Febrr,,.arr\ ,zalg,
by John Caldwell.

Notary Public for

(sEAL)
the State of T?faS

...{iti!;;Z BoBBTE GArr MENDozi

=tij{tr ..1: Nolory Fublic, Skrle ril Tcras

ZC. i/\.'.?.: Conrrrr. Frpirer I I -15-?o2?

%gl,l:L Notory lD I 1348e8-l

003829.000 I 52\4836- I 756-453 0.v I



Ann Chaffin

t'

lP*il-^iltttnn

STATE OF TEXAS $

$

$couNTY orjturr,n,r*

This instrument was acknowledged before me on tne 5#r 6ny
by Ann Chaffin

Notary and for
the State of -f€_,,{A,\

(sEAL)

ot FpA,ut, 
^

,2019,f

,$w-'*
;it,lll.{.

B(}BBIE G^II MENDOZA
Nokrry Pulrlir. Skrlc ol Texos
Conrrrr. Fr;lirr:r I I - l5-?t)??
Nolory lD I l J4B?g- l

003829.000 r 52\4836- I ?56-4530.v I



Waller Family Revocable Living Trust

By:
Lois Waller Marchal, as the Waller
Family Revocable Living Trust

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY oF &r4 ti ri t

This instrument was acknowledged before me on th" 
oJth 

duy6p {etoru.e-r4 .ZA$
by Lois Waller Marchal, as Trustee of the Waller Family Revocable Living Trust.

Notary Public in for
the State of

(sEAL)

$

$

$

''.iffi
EOBBIT GA'I MENDOZA
Nolory ltrrblit, $klla ol lcxns

Cornnr, Frpires I 1-15-?02?

Noloty lD I 134898- I

003829.000 l 52\4836-l 756-4530.v I



BLSR Operating, Ltd.,
a Texas limited partnership

By: BLSR Management Corp.
Its: General Parhrer

By:
Name
Title:

Caldwell
President

THE STATE OF TEXAS

hroCOLI-NTY OF rl\t^-
4'J-'vY

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this /' day os iebru<^-,
2019, by John Caldwell, President of BLSR Management Corp., a Texas
partner of BLSR Operating, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, on behalf of said corporation and
said limited partnership.

Notary Public in for
the State of Texas

(sEAL)

$

$

$

.$#
BO88IE $AIL MENDOZA

Nolnrv lrrhlic, Shrle ol Tcxas

Crnt,,, trPi'cs 1 I -l5-?022

Nobry lD I134898-l

003829.000 I 52\4836-l 7564530.v I



I r alrt'r:: I ,rrrl*t'n rxnl*),
' 

.,!/,:rut1t *r l'..4t"{fu 
Lrug,q .{

\l\l'{t,i llh\:

r r,i ',;\ ,,. S{ilZilr'}r,A

I lt:, ttttl;,,rr,.'tll \r.!'. ,,,.t1:r,,.1 !i-,j1qrj rrr-lrrfr, ;::r-'r;ti llt'. I rl,t\ ,'l fchru.trY--l
'ttl"

j,.: i!i t:

''' I t ' t ! ,

. J ft-r' 
11 ili r"t{iit{ itUJl.rl-d"u), 1

'- ',,1..t i" i' r't,ril!; l,t
:li, !,i,rrr , it \ii-':

r1f

t-

'. t \.'

. ie r::^ ::1: t ..itliIi,...:i:
"r:t,s1, .; r, ittai:. 1!
gr a! !r. t:!rtr::rf,t,$,

.,:. !! ;:;._J



BXHIBIT "A''
CoLrnty:

Project:
Job No.
MBS No.

Fort BendiBlazoria
Southern Colony
I 85s67
l8-229

FIELD NOTES FOR 362.666 ACRES

Beirtgatlact containing362.666 acres 01'land, located in the Williarn I'"lall Survey. Ahstract 31, in l;oIt
Berrd County, 1'exas and Abstract 713 in Brazoria County" Texas; Said 362.666 acre tract being a call
363.942 acre tract recorded in the name olJ.H.Caldwell. et a] in Volume 796- Page 565 of the Official
Records of Fort Bend County (O.R.F.B.C.) and being Lots l, 2,3" 4.7,11,12 arrd a poftion of Lot 6.
1'.W. & J.H.B. Hotrse Sirbclivision, a subdivision recorded in Volurne 7, Page 301 of, the Fo* Bend
County Deed Records (F.B.C.D.R.); Said 362.666 acre tract being morc particularly clescribed by nretes
and bounds as fbllows (bearings being based on the'lexas Coordinate System, South Central Zone. NAD
83, as derived tl'orri GPS Obser.rations):

Beginning at a 2-inclt iron pipe tbund at the northeasterly conrer of a call 1.284 acre tracl recorded in the
name of For"t Bend Counl,v- Municipal Utility District Nr-lnber l4l in File Nurnber 2018043550 of the
O.R.F.B.C.. the soutl:easterly corner of a call 48.6 acre tract recorded in the name ol Emrna Ruth Bly in
File Number 20A4149678 of the O.R.F.B.C.. the southerly southwest conter of a call 484.4229 acre tract
recorded in the narne of Hannover Estates, LTD. in File Nurnber 2AA2140473 of the O.R.F.B.C. and
being the southeasterly conler of the David F'itzgerald League, Abstlact 25, the southwesterly corner of
the I.&G.N. R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract 352 and being on the no(herly line of the Willianr l-lall Survey.
Abstract 31, frotl which a 314-inch irotr rod lbLlnd at tlre rrorlheasterly corner of Reser.re "A", Fort Bend
ISD Fenrdell Hcnlv Center for Learning, a subdivision recorded in Plat Nunrber 20110173 olthe Fort
Bend County Plat Records (F.B.C.P.R.), bears South 86 degrees -55 minutes 29 seconds West. a distance
of 175.06 feet;

Thence, rvith the northerly line of said William Hall Sulvey and with the southerly lirre ol albresaicl
484.4229 acre tract and a call 17.478 acrc tract recorded in the name of JNC Development, lnc. in File
Number 2011115756 of the O.R.F.B.C., North 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconds East, at a disrance of
1755.20 pass a fbund 5/8-inch iron rod with "ltliller" cap, at a distarrce of 234A.21feet pass a lound 518-
inch iron rod rvith'oMiller" cap, at a distance of 3151.64 feet pass a for.rncl 5i8-inch iron rod with "Miller"
cap, at a distance of 3753,58 feet pass a found -518-inch iron rod lvith "Miller" cap, at a distarrce of
48Al.72leet pass the Fort BendlBrazoria County line" il all, a distance of 5137.14 feet to a 5i8-inch iron
rod set at the northeast conrer ol afbresaid William Flall Survey. the soutlieasterly con.rer of aforesaid
484.4229 acre tract and being the northeasterly corner of afbresaid Lot l;

Thence, with the easterly line of said William I'lall Survey, South 03 degrees 04 minutes 56 seconcls L,ast.
a distance of I 59 I .83 f-eet to a 2-inch PVC stand pipe found at the southeasterly corner of atblesaid l,ot I

and the northeasterly corner of Lot 9, aforesaid 'l'.W. & .l.FI.B. I-lor-rse Sr-rbdivision:

Tltence, with the southerly line olafbresaid L.ots I and 2, South 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconds West,
at a distance of 175.9A feet pass the aforesaid Fort Bend/Brazaria County line. in all. a clistance of
2n5,6A f-eet to a ?.-inch PVC stand pipe lound at tlre comrnon cornerol'atbresaid l-ots 2. 3. 7 and Lot 8,
aforesaid'f.W. & J.H.u. HoLrse Subdivision:

Thence. with the easterly line o1'said Lot 7, South 03 degrees 04 minutes 56 seconds East, a distance ol
l59l.23 feet to a 2-inch PVC stand pipe found at the common comer of aforesaid Lots 7, 8, I I and i2;

003829.000 I 52\48i6- I 756-4530.v I



Thence, with the common line between Lots 8 and I I, North 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconcls East, a
distance of 1367 .28 f'eet to a 2-inch PVC stand pipe fbund at the common corner of afbresaid Lots 8, 9, I l
and Lot 10, aforesaid T.W. & J.H.B. House Subdivision;

Thetrce, with tlre colnmon line between aforesaid Lots 10 and 11, South 03 degrees 04 minutes 56
seconds East, a distance of 1592.64 feet to a3l4-inch iron pipe founcl at the common comer of aforesaid
Lots 10 and I I and Lots 20 and 21, afbresaid T.W. & J.H.B. House Subdivision;

Thence, with the southerly line of aforesaid Lot 11, South 86 degrees 55 minutes 29 seconds West, a
distance of 1367.22 f'eet to a 5/8-incli iron rod set at the common coilrer of aforesaid Lots 11, 12.2A artd
Lot 19, aforesaid T.W. & J.LI.B. House Subdivision and being the easterly northeast corner of a call
91.100 acre ttact recorded in the narne of Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc. in File Number
2017121652 of the O.R.F.B.C.;

Thence, with the northerly and easterly lines of said 9l .100 acre tract, the tbllowing four (4) courses;

I ) South 86 degrees 42 rninutes 23 seconds West, at a distance ol 29.30 feet pass a fbund ll2-inclt
iron rod. in all, a distance of I 368.62 feet to a found 5/8-inch iron rod;

2) North 03 degrees 03 minutes 3I seconds West, a distance of 1594.92 feet to a found 518-inch iron
rod;

3) South 36 degrees 57 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 675.85 feet to a S/8-inch iron rod set;

4) South 86 degrees 48 minutes 40 seconds West, a disiance of 3.88 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod found
at the southeasterly corner of a call 162.2524 acre tract recorded in the name of Hannover Estates.
LTD. in File Nurnber 2004018462 of the O.R.F.B.C.;

Thence, with the easterly lines of said 162.2524 acre tract, the following tlrree (3) courses:

I ) North 03 degrees 04 minutes 56 seconds West. a distance of 1593.59 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod
set;

2) South 86 degrees 57 minutes 10 seconds West, a distance of 353.80 feet to a 5/8-inch iron with
cap found;

3) North 03 degrees 05 minutes 12 seconds West, at a distance of 1272.29 feet pass the southeasterly
corner of aforesaid 1.284 acre tract, in all, a distance of 1591.86 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING and containing362.666 acres of land.

THTS DESCRIPTION WAS PREPAR-ED IN CONNECTION WITH A PLAT OF SURVEY
DATED AUGUST 23,2018 AND FILED UNDER JOB NUMBER T85567 AT GBI PARTNERS,
L.P.

GBI PARTNERS, L.P.
TBPLS Firm No. 10130300
Plt:281 .499.4539
August 23,2A18

003829.000 I 52\4836- 1 756-4530.v I


	3/7/19 Agenda
	Planning Commission Minutes - 1/15/19
	CONSENT AGENDA
	A. 2/12/19 Council WS Minutes
	B. 2/21/19 Council Minutes
	C. Amending Plat - Cline Crossing 2
	Cline Crossing 2 Plat

	D. Final Plat - O'Reilly Addition
	O'Reilly Plat

	E. Final Plat - Lenamon Grove Addition
	Lenamon Grove Plat

	F. Final Plat - Huntington Place Section 3
	Huntington Place 3 Plat

	G. Prelim Plat - Southern Colony Section 5
	Southern Colony Sec 5 Plat

	H. Master Prelim Plat - Southern Colony Expansion Phase 1
	Southern Colony Exp 1 - Conceptual Plan
	Southern Colony Exp 1 - Expansion

	I. Final Plat - Fairway Lake
	Fairway Lake Plat


	OTHER BUSINESS
	A. Variance Request; Building Facade, Southwest Refractory of Texas, 2443 N. Gordon
	Variance Request Letter
	Site Development Plan
	Exterior Elevation Renderings (pg 30-33)
	Chapter 35 Variance Process

	B. Variance Request; Street Side Building Setback for 113 W. Lang
	Variance Request Letter
	Photos of 113 W. Lang (pg 37-39)
	Section 21-4 Variance

	C. Res 19-R-10; CenterPoint Easement for Electrical Power @ WWTP
	Resolution 19-R-10
	Exhibit A - Easements

	D. Ord 19-E; Chapter 24 Traffic; Forest Heights Speed Limit to 20 mph
	Ordinance 19-E

	E. League City Interlocal Agreement for use of APD Gun Range
	Interlocal Agreement

	F. Res 19-R-11; Consent to Creation Brazoria-Ft.Bend Counties MUD 3
	Resolution 19-R-11
	Exhibit A - Property Description
	Exhbit B - Conditions to Consent
	Petition to for Creation MUD 3





